


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-Life
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

Review

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(“Sino-Life” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“Year
2016") on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

Over the past year, taking advantage of our solid business
platform, we continued to extend our coverage actively, and
enhance our corporate image and brand visibility. We remain
committed to taking us to a higher level of professional and high-
quality services. Our efforts in a wide array of horizons were
paying off with promising results.

The past year was a challenging year for the Group. For the Year
2016, the Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB57.3
million (2015: approximately RMB61.6 million). In particular,
approximately 92.8%, approximately 5.0%, approximately 1.3%
and approximately 0.9% of the turnover was derived from the
PRC market, the Taiwan market, the Hong Kong market and the
Vietnam market respectively. The drop of revenue was mainly
due to the decrease in revenue of the Group’s funeral services
business in Chongging, However, gross profit margin decreased
to approximately 38.7% for Year 2016 (2015: approximately
49.5%) due to the provision for impairment on inventories
and development and formation costs. In addition, both selling
expenses and administrative expenses decreased as a result of
continuing efforts on the cost control. With these factors, loss
attributable to shareholders for the Year 2016 was approximately
RMB31.5 million (2015: approximately RMB9.4 million).

Prospects

The crucial focus of our development will rest in large part on the
PRC, Hong Kong and Vietnam, which is exceptionally going to be
a stronghold for reaping huge revenue to the Group in the coming
year. The Group’s management will continue to effectively raise
our business goal in different areas to a new high by adhering
to its unique, professional business model. Our management will
keep close eyes on other regions blessed with immense potential
and myriad opportunities as well, so as to extend our business
reach.
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Chairman’s Statement
T EHRE

On 31 March 2016, The Group has completed the acquisition
of the entire interest of the total aggregate capital of Bu Lao Lin
Limited (T~ Z#MMB DB A A ) (“BLL"), a company established
in Taiwan, which business scope includes provision of elderly
housing service; provision of leisure activities venues; retail sale of
information software; and so on.

Acquiring BLL enables the Group to develop the business for
the golden-ager and further penetrate the elderly care business
market which leads to a vertical expansion of the Group’s existing
business.

In connection with the newly added operations bases in past and
future years, we expect that these bases are starting to reward
us with profit contribution in 2017 upon their investment period.
What is more, we will also strengthen cost control. Building
on the Group's strategically well-established layout of business
development, and backed by an abundant pool of funds, our
management is confident to bring long-term returns and create
substantial value for shareholders.

I would like to express heartfelt thanks to banks and investors for
their support and trust on behalf of the Board of Directors. | would
also like to take this opportunity to thank our management and
staff for their efforts over the past year and their contribution to
the Group's success in business operations.

Chairman
Liu Tien-Tsai

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Vianagement Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The PRC - Funeral services

Funeral business in the PRC continues to be the driving force of
the Group's operations. The Group's revenue derived from funeral
business in the PRC market for the Year 2016 was approximately
RMB53.2 million, representing a decrease of about 7.9%
compared to last year and accounted for about 92.8% of the
Group's turnover.

Hong Kong - Funeral services

The Group's funeral business in the Hong Kong market generated
an approximate revenue of RMBO0.7 million for the Year 2016
representing a decrease of about 1.1% compared to last year and
accounted for approximately 1.3% of the Group's revenue.

Taiwan — Funeral services

The Group's revenue derived from funeral business in the Taiwan
market for the Year 2016 was approximately RMB2.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.4% compared to
last year and accounted for approximately 3.5% of the Group's
revenue.

Vietnam — Funeral services

The Group's revenue derived from the sales of cemeteries in
Vietnam was approximately RMB0.5 million for the Year 2016
representing a decrease of approximately 33.6% compared to last
year and accounted for 0.9% of the Group's revenue.

Taiwan — Elderly care services

The Group's revenue derived from the elderly care services in
Taiwan was approximately RMBO.9million for the Year 2016 and
accounted for 1.6% of the Group’s revenue.

Prospects

On 31 March 2016, the Group has completed the acquisition of
entire interest of the total aggregate capital (the “Acquisition”) of
BLL.

The scope of business of BLL includes provision of elderly
housing service; provision of leisure activities venues; retail sale
of information software; and so on. The Acquisition enables the
Group to develop the business for the golden-ager and further
penetrate the elderly care business market which leads to a vertical
expansion of the Group's existing business.
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Management Disoussion and Analysis

B IR [E T M AT

Financial review

Revenue

The revenue arising from principal activities for the year ended
31 December 2016 was approximately RMB57.3 million (2015:
approximately RMB61.6 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 7.0% as compared to 2015. Regarding to the
funeral services business provided in the PRC during the year, the
revenue was approximately RMB53.2 million (2015: approximately
RMB57.8 million), representing a decrease of approximately
7.9% which accounted for 92.8% of the Group's revenue (2015:
93.8%). The revenue generated by the funeral services business
provided in Taiwan was approximately RMB2.0 million (2015:
approximately RMB2.3 million), or 3.5% of the Group's revenue,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.4%. The revenue
generated by the funeral services business provided in Hong
Kong was approximately RMB0.7 million (2015: approximately
RMBO.7 million), or 1.3% of the Group's revenue, representing
a decrease of approximately 1.1%. The revenue generated by
sales of cemeteries in Vietnam was approximately RMBO0.5 million,
or 0.9% of the Group's revenue, representing a decrease of
approximately 33.6%. The revenue generated by elderly care
services in Taiwan was approximately RMBO0.9 million, or 1.6% of
the Group's revenue.

The revenue from the funeral service provided in funeral parlour
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management
decreased by 13.1%, amounting to approximately RMB39.2
million (2015: approximately RMB45.0 million). The drop was
mainly due to the decrease in the number of funeral services
provided from 2,211 to 2,027 for the Year 2016. Meanwhile,
the average spending per service provided dropped from
approximately RMB20,374 to approximately RMB19,319 for the
Year 2016.
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Vianagement Discussion and Analysis

The revenue from the cremation services increased by
3.8%, amounting to approximately RMB13.2 million (2015:
approximately RMB12.7 million). The increase was due to the
slightly increase in the number of cremation services provided
and the average spending per service provided from 8,889 to
9,077 for the Year 2016 and from approximately RMB1,428 to
approximately RMB1,457 for the Year 2016 respectively. Under the
funeral parlour management agreement and funeral service centre
management agreements, the Group is entitled to all income
and responsible for all liabilities and all expenses incurred in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management.

The revenue generated from funeral arrangement services
provided in Taiwan and Hong Kong was approximately RMB2.0
million and RMBO0.7 million respectively (2015: approximately
RMB2.3 million and RMBO0.7 million respectively), representing a
decrease of 14.3% and 1.2% respectively over last year.

The revenue generated from sales of burial plots and tombstones
and elderly care services was approximately RMBO0.5 million and
approximately RMBO0.9 million respectively (2015: approximately
RMBO.8 million and RMB Nil).

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by 27.2% to approximately RMB22.2
million (2015: approximately RMB30.5million), and gross profit
margin decreased to approximately 38.7% (2015: approximately
49.5%). The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to
decrease in revenue by 7% and increase in cost of sales by 12.9%.
The increase in cost of sales was resulted from the provision for
impairment on inventories and development and formation costs
for approximately RMB1.1 million (2015: Nil) and approximately
RMB7.9 million (2015: Nil) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E & M AT

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly include
(i) direct labour and staff cost for the funeral services provided
by individuals during the funeral ceremony held in a funeral
parlour or a funeral service centre managed by the Group; (ii)
subcontracting charges for services provided by the subcontractors
in Taiwan; (iii) commission expenses from the recognition of
commission paid to sales agents for funeral services deeds at the
point when the services of the funeral services deeds are provided;
(iv) the management fee and operating lease charges for hire
of funeral parlours and funeral service centres, and (v) materials
used for funeral ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh
flowers, fuel for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods
sold in the funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the
Group’s management in the PRC.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses decreased by approximately 7.1% to
approximately RMB5.8 million (2015: approximately RMB6.3
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the commission expenses as the drop of the revenue. The
proportion of selling expenses to revenue was approximately
10.2% (2015: approximately 10.2%). Administrative expenses
slightly decreased by 0.05% to approximately RMB30.2 million
(2015: approximately RMB30.2 million) as a result of continuing
the efforts in cost control of staff cost, entertainment expenses
and rental expenses. The proportion of administrative expenses to
revenue was approximately 52.7% (2015: approximately 49.1%).
Finance costs remained nearly the same of approximately RMBO.2
million (2015: approximately RMBO0.3 million). Income tax expense
decreased by approximately 33.2% to approximately RMB1.7
million (2015: approximately RMB2.6 million).

Impairment of Goodwiill

The Group obtained control of BLL through the Acquisition which
is engaged in provision of elderly care and related services. The
primary reason for the business combination is to enable the
Group to develop the business for the golden-ager and further
penetrate the elderly care market through (a) provision of nursery
services to the elderly and (b) consultancy services to other service
providers in the elderly care market by means of:

(i) establishment and/or hire of day-care centres;
(i)  establishment and/or hire of elderly homes, and;

(iiiy  provision of on-site nursery service at elderly’s premises.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In providing nursery and consultancy services, BLL will make use
of the Internet of Things and big data technologies to increase the
effectiveness and efficiency of the elderly care services.

Of the abovementioned three means, the management of BLL is
of the opinion that income from the establishment and/or hire
of day-care centres and elderly homes will generate better profit
margin and therefore conduct first. The provision of on-site service
will commence afterwards since the Group expected that the
establishment will help build up the brand name in the elderly care
market and have synergy effect to the business.

According to the plan, a day-care centre was completed and
started operation in June 2016. However, the Group only
generated consulting services income of approximately RMBO0.9
million during the year ended 31 December 2016, and which is
far beyond the Group’s expectation. On the other hand, since July
2016, the Group has started the negotiation with various owners
of elderly home and day-care centre for the hiring or acquisition
of several elderly home and day-care centres. The Group originally
expected the negotiation to be concluded in three to four months.
However, the negotiation was still in progress after this time
period till November 2016 as the profit sharing and hiring fee
could not be concluded. The Group foresees that longer time is
required to conclude the negotiation and to enter into the service
contracts, and such timing is still uncertain.

To seek for other business opportunities for the above services,
the Group has participated in an exhibition for the golden-ager
business in Chongging, the PRC. Through the exhibition, the
Group met several strategic partners in the PRC for the golden-
ager business and foresees that the PRC market for the golden-
ager business would have a higher potential. Accordingly, the
Group plan to allocate certain resources for the development of
the PRC market in addition to the development of the Taiwan
market.

Based on the above, due to the unexpectedly low income
generated from day-care centre and delay in the time required
for the establishment and/or hire of elderly home and to develop
the business in Taiwan market, management considered that such
circumstances led to impairment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E & M AT

The management considered there is no single event leading to
the impairment. The management monitored the development
of the business regularly after the acquisition and during the
second quarter that the day-care centre was established and
open for the customers. Since then, the Group keep on seeking
appropriate location to establish other day-care centres but there
is unexpected delay in signing contract to hire other day-care
centres and elderly homes. In the meantime, the Group’s selling
team promoted the elderly care service model to the other service
providers and earn the consultancy income. The management
aware that the income generated from the business cannot
meet the expectation during the final quarter of the year but the
management believed that this may not have significant financial
impact at that time. However, with reference to the business
valuation conducted by the independent valuer for the preparation
of year end consolidated financial statements, the management
recognized there would be financial impact.

Income approach and discounted cashflow method is used for the
valuation.

At the time of acquisition, the Group has prepared a valuation
in determining the fair value of the business, using discounted
cash flow method and taking into account the economic benefits
generated from the business in its highest and best use in the
market.

During the course of audit, the Group has prepared a valuation
for the purpose of impairment assessment using discounted
cash flow method and the cash flow projections prepared by the
management to be generated from the business and continuing
use based on:

(i)  reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent
management'’s best estimate of the range of economic
conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the
business;

(i)  the most recent financial budgets approved by the
management, but exclude any estimated future cash inflows
or outflows expected to arise e from future restructurings or
from improving or enhancing the asset’s performance.

Comparison on the valuation at the time of the Acquisition and
performing impairment assessment:—
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENwm &M

At the time of
the Acquisition

B U R B

Performing
impairment
assessment

i 1T B R

Valuation method

Major assumptions

(i) Business income streams

H1ETA

() AR

Income approach and
discounted

cash flow method
WAE R
AEIRIB & MA

(@) Provision of nursery
services to the elderly and

(a) AEERHEE RS K&

(b) consultancy services to
other service providers in
the elderly care market by
means of:

—~
)

A AR -

— establishment and/
or hire of day-care
centres;

- RuRk/HAEAARE

B

— establishment and/or
hire of elderly homes;
- RN SMEALTE

B :

— provision of on-site
nursery service at
elderly’s premises.

- RREEERSREME

5 ARF o

BRI TAREMEE
M52 RIS & R

Income approach and
discounted

cash flow method
WAE R
BRIRIR & A

Providing consultancy
services to day-care centre
A B R fh R4
A IR

Reason for changes: Refer to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets when estimating the value in use of the CGU involves
estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of the CGU in its current
condition and applying the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
SHYRA - EA P LA RRAEGEFEERRESELAEUMELAZAKRRERNBRELEUGARRK 2
REBGTERFE36GR[EERME] -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB wm &

Performing
At the time of impairment
the Acquisition assessment
B W R i 17 (B AT (b
(i) Revenue growth rate for
five years 25% to 113% 10% to 192%
(i) AFRmERE 25%Z%113% 10%%192%

Reason for changes: The revenue growth from the different means of providing services is not the same and
decrease in actual revenue generating business stream from expected resulted in the drop in revenue growth.

FHFEA I TIRAD ARG WRIERAEREL R R E B2 WRIERETBEFEER -

(i) Average gross margin Approximately 66.2% 47% 1o 63%
(i) FHFEF= #966.2% 47%%E63%

Reason for changes: The gross margin from the different means of providing services is not the same and decrease
in actual revenue generating business stream from expected resulted in the drop in revenue growth.

EYPHRA : TR TARERG ZENEEEREF RS X H 2 WRIBERE T BEFEER-

Major parameters

FTELHY
(i) Discount rate 15.4% 15.5%
(i) BRIR= 15.4% 15.5%

Reason for changes: No significant change

HYHRE WEEAE

(i) Long-term growth rate 2.0% 3.0%
(i) RAERE 2.0% 3.0%

Reason for changes: In accordance with the market data in Taiwan at different time period.

HEREA: RBEIERFHNETSEE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss for the Year

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year 2016
was approximately RMB31.5 million (2015: approximately RMB9.4
million). The increase in loss for the Year 2016 was mainly due
to the net effect of (i) decrease in the gross profit; (ii) increase
in other income as there was an increase in interest income and
net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss for the Year 2016, and,;
(iii) increase in other operating expenses which mainly consist of
impairment loss of goodwill, development and formation costs,
prepayments and inventories.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB98.6 million (2015: approximately RMB98.7
million) and bank borrowings of approximately RMB11.0 million
(2015: approximately RMB7.6 million). All bank and other loans
were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars, at prevailing market
interest. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. The gearing ratio representing
the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of the Group was
4.3% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 2.8%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

During the year, the Group’s major operations were geographically
based in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. The revenue
derived from Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam accounted for
approximately 7.2% (2015: approximately 6.2%) of the total
revenue. Its financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
while a significant portion of the revenue and expenses are
denominated in the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong
Kong Dollar and Vietnamese dong. It is possible that the value of
Renminbi may fluctuate in value against that of the United States
Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese
dong. The Group’s operating results and financial condition may
be affected by changes in the exchange rates of Renminbi against
the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar
and Vietnamese dong, in which the Group's revenue and expenses
are denominated. As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not
have any bank liabilities, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest and
exchange risks.

B E & M AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E & M AT

Significant Acquisitions and Disposal of
Investments

The Group did not have any significant acquisition or disposal of
investment for the Year 2016.

The Number and Remuneration of
Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately 221
employees (2015: 225 employees). The Group determines staff
remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary scales,
individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options
are reviewed on regular basis.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and bank deposits pledged as security for the
Group's bank borrowings were approximately RMB18.5 million
(2015: RMB17.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2015: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, capital expenditure
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB5.2 million (2015: approximately RMB3.5
million).

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements

amounting to approximately RMB6.5 million (2015: approximately
RMB8.9 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and
financial management risks.

The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group are
summarized as follows:

(i) Slow down of the economy and customer spending;
(i)  Deterioration of market competition;

(i) Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(iv)  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral service
centres in the PRC, and;

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the business
operations of the Group are service-oriented;

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group
are shown in note 33 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Environmental policy and performance

The Group emphasises on environmental conservation. Although
the Group does not establish a formal environmental policy,
various measures have been implemented to encourage
compliance with environmental legislation and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances. To
conserve the environment, the Company encourages staff to
maintain electronic records in order to reduce paper consumption.
The Group will review its environmental practices periodically and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of the Group's businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

=~ ==& 1L A\
EEE = H‘—_rFIFFH &77 jﬁﬁ_
Laws and regulations of our business

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During Year 2016, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group establishes good working relationship with employees.
The quality of the employer-employee relationship affects each
employee’s morale, productivity and ultimately, the Company’s
profitability. Each employee’s ideal work environment varies and
the expectations include a relationship that is mutually respect,
encourages open communication and is free of hostile working
conditions. Certain employees have worked for the Group for over
15 years.

The Group has built a solid track record for providing reliable
and cost competitive funeral services and has a good reputation
with the customers. The Group has also conducted survey of
customers’ opinion on its services with regard to the types of
services which had been provided to the customers and their
comments on the quality of the services provided.

The Group puts strong emphasis on the reliability of suppliers
to meet the needs of our customers. The Group’s practice to
make prompt payment to suppliers benefited the Group from
negotiating a better price and maintaining long term relation with
the suppliers.

During Year 2016, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or customers.

Comparison of Business Objectives With
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in the
Prospectus and the announcement (the “Announcement”) by the
Company on 8 December 2015 with the Group’s actual business
progress for the period from 9 September 2009 (the “Listing
Date"”) to 31 December 2016 is set out below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business objectives for the period

from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016

as stated in the Prospectus and the
Announcement
BEREEERZAEFE LT AME
—E—RFE+-A=+—HEMNESE
®

B E & M AT

Actual business progress up to 30 June 2016

BE_E—XR"FEXAZ=+H®
EREERE

Expand funeral services network in other
major cities by entering into funeral-services
agreement

BRI R FE RS ek o A E M E
7B R IR 75 4 4

The Group has implemented two of the memoranda of
understanding (the “MOQOU") disclosed in the “Future Plan and
Prospects” section of the Prospectus.

AEBETHRER [RARGFERATR] —EHBRENEFR
M1 R 8 (R RER])

The Group is in the process of negotiating the terms with the
owners of remaining funeral parlours and new funeral service
centres.

AEBEERERBERELNBERE D OEE ANEBGER -
The Group has also signed other two new subcontracting
agreements during 2010.

AEEMRER —ZE-BFITLEMRO I AR E-

The Group has commenced business in Vietnam during 2013.

AEEER T ——FHRBEIES-

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Business objectives for the period

from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016

as stated in the Prospectus and the
Announcement
BRERRZLEMELTARE
—E—-RE+-A=+—HEHENESHE
B

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB wm &

Actual business progress up to 30 June 2016

BE_S—X"FXNA=+HH
EREBERR

Purchase of funeral service equipment and
facilities

BERERGRER&E

Refurbishment of new and existing service
centres

K& KRB R RF L

Expansion of marketing network

R T 5 R AR AR

Consideration for the Acquisition

WikE 2 M8

Expansion of the business into the market
on the golden-ager and elderly care

WRREBGREAEGERHZTS
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The Group has completed the purchase of advanced
equipment and facilities designated for funeral.
REED TKIBERBEEM R 5T RE KR -

As disclosed in the Announcement, the Board resolved to
change the application of the remaining net proceeds of the
Placing as points 5 and 6 below.

WMINZ A EFEE  EE SR AT E5E R EIBATIM 2
FAENEERBFASEFRARENRE -

The Group has completed the decoration and improvement of
funeral parlour and services centres.

AEEERRRENAEBERLRBF O -

The Group has completed the establishment of the website
and organised and sponsored a forum and research on the
funeral industry.
REECFMBEY WAL ERREERARBREE  RER
ot

The Group has completed the Acquisition on 31 March 2016.
REBERZZE—"F=-A=+—HTRKE-

The Group has started the acquisition of related property, plant
and equipment.

AEEFRRBERBYE BB MEE-



Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENwm &M

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016, the FHWHHBE-FTE—XR"F+=-A=+—HIH

net proceeds from issuance of new shares of the Company had [ ANRGZETHRMD B KB FECEA
been applied as follows: R
Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in Actual use
the Prospectus and of proceeds
the Announcement from the
from the date of
Listing Date to listing to
31 December 2016 30 June 2016
BREERRBLE
Frt E A M E LIHAME
k-2 —Z-R¥
+-A=+—-H AA=1H
DL ERamRmn
FRBRE R#RE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®EF T
Expand funeral services network in other major cities BB B &R B
by entering into funeral-services agreement BAEMEERTH
BERBHER 12,960 12,960
Purchase of funeral service equipment and facilities §5 5 R B IR R B R R e 10,239 10,239
Refurbishment of new and existing service centres B RBERRETR D 21,266 21,266
Expansion of marketing network BRMGHEERE 1,450 1,450
Consideration for the Acquisition of BLL WEREMRZRE 18,200 18,200
Expansion of the business into the market ARBERK
on the golden-ager and elderly care ENEEEB TS 11,721 3,827

The Directors expect that most of the business objectives stated E BB BN T —+tF L¥FHETZA
in the Announcement for the period from the Listing Date to & ATl FTTHEZE T —XR"F+-_A=+—
31 December 2016 will be revisited in the first half of 2017. HIFHIBRHKBHEBKLEZ - R —<F
All the remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2016 have been +-AZ=+—H FIEH THBHAEHEA
placed as interest bearing deposits in banks. RITIERFTBFH

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR 21
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Corporate Governance Report

Er e AN e
PEEIRME
Corporate Governance Practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2016, with the exception for the following deviations:

Under Code A.2.1 provides that the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The positions of Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") of the Company
are both currently carried on by Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai. The Board
considers that the Group's size is still relatively small and thus not
justified in separating the role of Chairman and CEO. The Group
has in place internal control system to perform the check and
balance function. The Board believes that having the same person
performing the roles of both Chairman and CEO does provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and that, operating
in this manner allows for more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors

A)

B)

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprises two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Kim Eun Back

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the Code
Provision, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
"Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While
all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The biographical details
of the Directors and the relationship among the members
of the Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages from 37 to 40 of this annual
report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing and
approving financial statements. The Directors, collectively
and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders, for the manner in which the affairs of the
Group are managed and operated. As and when necessary,
the Directors can access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group’s expense
to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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PRBEAWE

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated
to the management for the management and administration
functions of the Group, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management to
discharge its duties and responsibilities in all circumstances.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held five
meetings. The Directors can attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company'’s articles of association. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision
in advance of each board meeting. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings
held during the year:
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SRBTAIRSRIFERELEFRAF
e TREBIIBEHESTFALFEEZ

B

Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) BN SEE (£/E) 4/4
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEHEE 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BFHITES

Mr. Chai Chung Wai = RELA 4/4
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—giE 4/4
Mr. Lee Koon Hung ES S e 4/4
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There was one general meeting held on 19 May 2016 which
was the annual general meeting of the Company. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors
at the general meeting held:
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RZF-—AREAATNABET-RRK
RREG ZAGDNARABZBRRBFK
o TREJIERNEFHEMBITZH
RRgZBER:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) RIRNBT e & (/) ”n
Mr. Kim Eun Back TEEEE 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHTESE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai BREEE 11
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-iE 0/1
Mr. Lee Koon Hung ESTHS e 0/1

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai is appointed as the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s business. The Board considers that Mr. Liu
has in-depth knowledge in the Group's business and can make
appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation
of the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is necessary.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 independent non-executive directors presenting
at least one-third of the Board with at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending

training course or reading relevant materials on the topics related
to roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

o Audit Committee

o Remuneration Committee

° Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms

of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EE= 15

RIBTRMEXEALSK SREFESE—
HERLEMEMBIREZHEEEER
R UHEREEHEEFS 2ERIDB A
KRR - NRAR A B RS IR - EE
EREEZAG BELBE-

REARBEAREAH AAEESEHEB
2NEIIREXHERR LT AREENA
B BEMIBHENETHETRER

EFXREE

EEgNLTIEE
& :

8

0 FRE H B S

EEFREeYHMBREREERER
AZ FEELRE - AARE AR S E
BgRERE RIBENKE -



Corporate Governance Report

A) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2016, four meetings were
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BREEE
Mr. Lee Koon Hung EFT-S e

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports before submission
to the Board. The Audit Committee focused not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review
of the Company'’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

i. making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor;

ii. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

ii.  monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-yearly
report and, quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the auditors;
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V. overviewing the Company'’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the relevant
provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of
reference which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2016, one meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

B—iE
FEAtELE

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management;

i.  determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management;

ii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and
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iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) in August 2009 with written
terms of reference in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange which consists of three independent non-
executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2016, one meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

9

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (Chairman) TRALE (EE)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai B RELE
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—RiE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the appointment of the Board members of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

i. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

ii. assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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iv.  making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

V. making recommendations to the Board on the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members; and

vi. giving full consideration to the Board's policy
concerning diversity of Board members adopted from
time to time.

The Board adopted on 26 August 2013 a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain
duties under the Policy to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee and the Board had also reviewed
on 24 March 2015 the structure of the Board and is of
the opinion the Board consisted of members with different
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, which met
the requirements under the terms of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

Under Code A.4.1, all the non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present,
each of Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu, Mr. Chai Chung Wai and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung, the independent non-executive Directors have
been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid
to the auditors, Crowe Horwarth (HK) CPA Limited in respect of
audit services and non-audit service assignment amounted to
approximately RMB857,000 (2015: approximately RMB813,000)
and approximately RMB Nil (2015: approximately RMB180,000)
respectively.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for the period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and on a going concern basis. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Having made appropriate
enquiries, the Board is not aware any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cost significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. It is the
auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditor’s report.

Company Secretary
Mr. Mok Yu Ting was appointed as Company Secretary. According

to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Mok have taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

(@)  the process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks;

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially affect
the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management; and
(i) Considers the impact and consequence on the business
and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing and
periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate
internal control processes are in place; (i) Revises the risk
management strategies and internal control processes in
case of any significant change of situation; and (iii) Reports
the results of risk monitoring to the management and the
Board regularly.
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the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; ensure
compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure
proper maintenance of accounting records for provision of
reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication; and to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain that
such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group and endeavours to identify,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failures to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

e aran\ VAN~ B
= N=W~ 315& =
B I PSR R G T B

AEBECDHEEERERF EEREEE
TewBALEE: BRETAERZE
B RARRD: RBBREGRE
SRR ERRBAIETHER 2GS
CHFHZERE  METHEARERR
A BRI RRMH A ERE -

EEemRAaERAREE AR
Eghimat AR - AN AR EZF R
BIRERMIEERREEDRF BT
B B T AR AT BEREET N E AR
BRIRHAEMIFBYE 2 RE

ERG YRaERR-EEEE
SEERRZARERERBHBER -
22 AR 2 BB R e E RS BETTRE
R ¥ e o AN R B Bl B IR K A B
BN E B B M IEHR SEBE
BREzREk  BERYNERRBRIE
BRESEMIFBYE 2 RIE -

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR

33



34

Corporate Governance Report

M A
PHEERWMRE

(d)

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy
and Internal Control Services Limited as its risk management
and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2016. Such review is conducted annually and cycles
reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of review was
previously determined and approved by the Board. The
Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board/
Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from
the Adviser are properly followed up by the Group to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board therefore considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:
(i) Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments; (ii) Designated persons and departments to
determine further escalation and disclosure as required; and
(iii) Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM(s)”) shall also be convened on the requisition of two
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within three months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company's information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (quarterly
report, half-yearly reports and annual reports), and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be any
number of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings at the date of the requisition.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:—

Hotline no.: 2153 3231

By post: Unit B3 4/F Summit Building
30 Man Yue Street
Hunghom, Hong Kong

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
the publication of annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com and meetings with investors and analysts.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (21 R), aged 58, is the chairman of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also the
team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the Group's
establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in training its
team.

Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit Making Organisation
Management and Mortuary Science and Funeral Service
Management from Nanhua University (F8 % A2 ) in 2000
and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of managerial,
corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began his career in
funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a member of Japan
Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( B RIRBIE/EHE ), the
National Funeral Director Association of the United States and the
FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council member of Society of Chinese
Funeral Education (2 RBIEZE# 5 £ ) and Chinese Society
of Life and Death Studies ( FE 432 € ) . Mr. Liu had also been
a lecturer holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial
master and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (SR BT 2T EEEHEHE F L) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (F B 7&ZEH# € ) in the PRC. Mr. Liu has not served
in any other public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3
years.
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Mr. Kim Eun Back (& 1#) , aged 50, is an executive Director
of the Company appointed on 16 February 2009. Mr. Kim joined
the Group in July 1999. Mr. Kim has over 10 years of experience
in the industry of funeral services since he joined Bau Shan in
1999. He is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development in Vietnam, in particular
overseeing the daily operations in Vietnam, monitoring and over-
seeing the implementation of funeral services, the improvement
of the services and public relation affairs of the Group. Mr.
Kim graduated from the Department of Political Science of the
National Chengchi University (Bl 3Z BUERE) in June 1989,
obtained a master degree from the Department of Public Affairs
of the Yonsei University (ZEtH X2 ), Korea in February 1993
and obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua
University, Taiwan in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kim had
working experience in companies that provide funeral services.
He has accumulated experience in the funeral services industry
which is beneficial to the Group. Mr. Kim has not served in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3 years.

(lin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BE{&), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group in
February 2009 and was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master
degree of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004
and of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of Ping
Shan Tea Group Limited (formerly known as “Huafeng Group
Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 364), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from 6 August 2009 to 30 September 2013. Mr.
Chai has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (2— &), aged 72, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Ching obtained
the degree of bachelor of Science in Aerospace Engineering from
the University of Kansas in 1967, and the master of business
administration degree from the University of Toronto in 1976. He
is the director of Caneast Group (Canada) Inc. and also a fellow
of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Ching has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years.

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (ZE@i#t), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company appointed on 30
September 2012. Mr. Lee obtained a higher diploma from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”). Mr. Lee is presently the director of Long Rich
Investment Consultants Limited. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in investment. Mr. Lee is presently a member of the North District
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’'s Republic of China. Mr. Lee is also the chairman of Sha
Tau Kok District Rural Committee, N.T., the Ex-officio Executive
Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk N.T. and Village Indigenous
Inhabitant Representative of Wu Kau Tang of Sha Tau Kok District
Rural Committee, N.T.. Mr. Lee is also the honorary president of
Border District Junior Police Call of Hong Kong, a member of the
school management committee of New Territories Heung Yee
Kuk Tai Po District Secondary School and a member of the school
management committee of Sha Tau Kok Central Primary School.
Mr. Lee has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years.

Senior Management

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (3R& 8 ), aged 51, graduated from the
National Sun Yat-sen University (BI37 /[ K& ) | Taiwan with
a master degree of Executive MBA program in 2012 and joined
the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head Management
Office. Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate of IPMA
Level D, Certificated Project Management Associate issued by
Taiwan Project Management Association in 2009. As head of
the Department Head of Head Management Office and also the
general manager of Chongging Xibao and Chongging Xizhou,
Ms. Chang is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development, in particular overseeing
of personnel, business analysis and internal audit function of
all funeral parlours and funeral service centres in the PRC and
the Group. Ms. Chang is also the team head of the internal
compliance team. She also has over 9 years of experience in
management in respect of the business and operation in funeral
industry.
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Mr. Shih Chih Jen ($E%{=) , aged 47, joined the Group in July
2010 as the deputy general manager of the Group’s Hong Kong
division. He obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from
Nanhua University (R 2 K2 ) , Taiwan in September 2002 and
also was employed by Continuing Education Center, Ling Tung
College (%8 R XM 2t B EH EHE F0) as the lecturer
of Funeral service in 2002. As the sales manager of the Group's
Vietnam operation, Mr. Shih is responsible for the sales, marketing
and overall business development of Vietham segment. Mr. Shih
has over 14 years of management experience in the funeral
services industry and acquired the requisite management capability
to manage the funeral services business of the Group to its
benefit.

Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying (&% &), aged 38, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University ($%{5 X&) with a bachelor degree of
Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001 as
an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying has since served
the Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan has a
thorough knowledge and understanding of the Group's business
and operations, and has developed a high level of proficiency and
management ability with respect to her work with the Group.
As head of the funeral services deed department, Ms. Pan is
responsible for marketing and attaining the sale of funeral services
deeds. Ms. Pan has over 15 years of experience in management in
respect of the Group's business and operation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting (E#EE) , aged 40, has served as the financial
controller and company secretary of the Company since March
2008. Mr. Mok is responsible for the Company’s financial and
treasury management. Mr. Mok is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Mok graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999 with the degree of bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and further obtained two master
degrees of Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2006 and of Law in China Business Law from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2009. He has over 16 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Board is here to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 21 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 208.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Use of Proceeds From the Company’s Initial
Public Offering

The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares at the
time of its listing on the GEM of Stock Exchange in September
20009, after deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted to
approximately RMB82.3 million.

On 8 December 2015, the Board has resolved to change the use
of the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB29.9 million,
representing approximately 39.5% of the net proceeds. Details
of movements in use of proceeds during the year are set out on
pages from 18 to 21 of this annual report.
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Summary of Financial Information

METHER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-AZ+-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZB-x& —ZT-1f —T-mF —T-=ZF —ET-F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
57l) (&5) (&%) (E751)
ABRTRE ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
Turnover EEE 57,342 61,633 69,648 63,106 61,767
Gross profit EA 22,193 30,487 36,779 29,638 28,707
Loss before taxation BREATEE (32,899) (7,183) (10,987) (15,966) (28,565)
Loss attributable to AARHBANEEER
owners of the Company (31,520) (9,402) (11,142) (16,175) (29,487)
Basic loss per share BREXERE
(RMB cents) (AEEBD) (4.25) (1.27) (1.50) (2.18) (3.97)
As at 31 December
B+=A=+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-R"E —T-1F —T-QmE —Z-=F ZZT--F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®TRT ARETT AREBFT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 52,691 59,400 49,013 65,433 63,403
Current assets MBEE 199,879 211,691 234,082 236,955 282,592
Current liabilities HEAE 109,875 99,950 100,839 107,459 126,141
Net assets FEE 132,618 164,083 174,757 186,620 210,294
Major Customers and Suppliers FTEERRMER

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of funeral
services, none of its customers accounted for more than 1% of
its total turnover during the year. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 14.4% of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein

amounted t0 4.9%.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any material beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

Segment Reporting

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Property

Details of movements in investment property of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves
At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for

distribution to owners comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB61.1 million.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to approximately RMB3,000 (2015: approximately
RMB27,000).
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were;

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Kim Eun Back

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

According to the requirements of Article 16.18 of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and Mr.
Chai Chung Wai will retire by rotation in accordance with Article
16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages from 37 to 40 of this annual
report.

Directors’ Service Agreement

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and
Mr. Kim Eun Back has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 9
September 2009 and 9 September 2009 respectively, which
continues thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.
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Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ching Clement Yat-biu and Mr. Chai Chung Wai, have re-entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2018, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month'’s notice
in writing to the other party.

One independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Koon Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 30 September 2015 to 29
September 2018, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five
Individuals With Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid or payable to the senior management of the
Group who are not Directors were within the following bands:
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2016, the relevant interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFQ")),
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of SFO) or required
pursuant to section 352 of SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or required, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.68 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

EERFLFINEMAMEBEEZ

B0 RN RIRIEEZERR
wRE
WoE—AE+=A=—B EFREHS

BABRARRSREREEZ®E (FERF
NS ED ([EHERBEEG]) (F571F)
”kxvﬁB)ZHx@(erfﬁD FERE R 1D R &
ERHEEREES R EEMEXVIIET NS
/‘*B/,\%IJ AN F) KB R Fr 2 AR R R 2 ROk
B (BEBREEFMBEKRIBBIEESE
WEAESER BB 2 S IOAR) AR
BB 5 K B S A& 5] 35216 5 A Z A& B i ¥
ZERMzAEERSNR AR  RARIELE
R E TR B E5 4615 E5.6815 8 FE HiETT
BERHZRTEMG AR T R FT 2 8
% sSRORBIT

R 2R RER

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held the Company

E 3|

ERTERE

EElE Rany 5B E R #waask

Liu Tien-Tsai Personal 308,184,000 41.51%

2R 81 A

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short FEBRRREG RHERMBRGZE
positions in the shares and underlying shares &RiKkE&

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under  1RIE &5 M HI & (&0 EXVELE33615 7B &

section 336 of Part XV of SFO showed that as at 31 December T ERRELMA R KRB ERR-Z

2016, the Company was notified of no substantial shareholders’
interests (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company), being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares Or
Debentures

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
Trademark Licence Agreement |

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered into the Trademark
Licence Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement 1”) with Mr. Liu
Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu"). Pursuant to the Trademark Agreement |,
Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an exclusive basis
a licence to use a number of trademarks and service marks
in connection with the Group’s funeral services business at a
consideration of HK$1,000 per year.

Trademark Licence Agreement Il

On 1 April 2016, BLL has entered into the Trademark Licence
Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement II”) with Mr. Liu Ting
Hsuan (“Mr. TH Liu”), son of Mr. Liu. Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement Il, Mr. TH Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an
exclusive basis a licence to use a number of trademarks and service
marks in connection with the Group's elderly care services business
at a consideration of maximum HK$1,000 per year.

Signing of Deed of Trust

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was
entered into between Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd
(BILUAEBRIBRMBER2AE]) (“Bau Shan”) , a subsidiary of the
Company and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li”) (=288 ), spouse of Mr.
Liu, in relation to the land property situated in Taiwan at No. 943
in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township, Kaohsiung County (=%
S S MBI EZ943H0 5% ) (the “Niao Song Property”). Under the
Niao Song Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be registered under the name
of and held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she
shall act in the interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 March
2013, a renewal of Niao Song Deed was entered into for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
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The Group entered into a trust arrangement instead of transferring
the Niao Song Property to the Group because, as advised by the
Taiwan legal adviser to the Group, the Niao Song Property is a
piece of agricultural land and the Law of Agriculture Development
of Taiwan does not allow Bau Shan being a private corporate
body, to be registered as an owner of a piece of agricultural land.
Therefore, the Niao Song Property is held on trust by Ms. Li for
Bau Shan. The Taiwan legal adviser to the Group has advised that
the Niao Song Deed complies with the Trust Act and other relevant
laws and regulations in Taiwan.

Jlin

Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to Chongqing
Xibao by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing the licensee,
Chongqging Xibao, a subsidiary of the Company, to lawfully
use the property situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the
“Licensed Property”) as the registered office without the payment
of rent or licence fee. The signed confirmation from Mr. Liu
authorizing Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property as its
registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal use, rental and
mortgage of the Licensed Property. There was no revenue or profit
contributed by the Licensed Property during the year as there had
been no occupancy of the Licenced Property during the year.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu will last until 30
January 2052.

All the transactions fall within Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing
Rules and each constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. All the related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

During Year 2016, none of the Directors, or any person who was
(or group of persons who together were) entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of the Company and which was (or were) able, as a
practical matter, to direct or influence the management of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which
competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
parties. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company's
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2016.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(@

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The participants include (i) any employee or proposed
employee of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest, including any executive directors
and any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of such
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; and (ii) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share Option
Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date of the particular option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Company’s shares
commenced on the GEM Board (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing 10% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the year end date.
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Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any participants in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at
the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant concerned in
respect of all shares which are offered to such participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the eligible participant, together with
a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$10 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company, within such time as may be
specified in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should not
exceed 5 years from the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in the
circumstances by giving notice in writing to the Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number
of shares in respect of which it is so exercised. Each
such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable
remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
shares in respect of which the notice is given.
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Details of the share options granted and remaining outstandingas RZ-Z—A<"F+-_A=+—HEELEHXK
at 31 December 2016 are as follows: T2 BRI IR T
Number of share options
HRERE
Exercise At At
Name/category price 1 January 31 December
of participants Date of grant per share Exercisable period 2015 Lapsed 2015
»® B
=14 ~g-1% —E-1F
2HERSE W BHAY TR frEm -A-8 %% +-RA=+-H
Directors of the Company
FLRER
Mr. Kim Eun Back 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
15 January 2017
LEERA —E-—#—-R+XH 0.6078 7T ZE-=%-A+~HE
“EZ—t5-AtHA
Directors of subsidiaries
HELARES
Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
ERBLL “E-"%-A+H 0.60%7T —Z-ZF-Rt+RHE
I R il
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
REFRL —E-—#—-R+XH 0607 ZT-=%-A+~HE
“Z—+E5-A+haH
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 8,768,000 (420,000) 8,348,000
employees 11 February 2020
EHEPER I 1887 “Z-TF\RT+-HE
ZZ-2F_R+-H
16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 4,120,000 (560,000) 3,560,000
15 January 2017
“E2-—E-R+KAH 0608T  —E-ZF-AtRHE
“ET—tF-AtHA
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 41,900,000 - 41,900,000
11 February 2020
Bm “E-TF-RAt+-H 18T “E-ZF\Rt+-HE
“E-ZE-A1-R
58,788,000 (980,000 57,808,000
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The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten years
from the date of grant. As at 31 December 2016, 748,000 of
50,248,000 options (2015: 1,168,000 of 50,920,000 options)
were exercisable in the same year of the date of grant with 50%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and at
the end of the year from the date of grant and 49,500,000 of
50,248,000 options (2015: 49,500,000 of 50,920,000 options)
are exercisable over five years from the date of grant, with 20%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and first
calendar date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire five years from the
date of grant and will be exercisable after one year from the date
of grant. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates have been granted share
options under the Share Option Scheme.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance
Save and except the deviation from the Code A.2.1 as contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had,

during the year, complied with the Code.

The Group's compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 22 to 36 of this annual report.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision
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The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

Auditors

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Independent Auditor's Report

Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF SINO-LIFE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-Life
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 65 to 208, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

T8 N A% BRI R

EEEE &P SEMEBAMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

& EE IBTRET 7 SEH 092
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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AR A GIIE e
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report

Acquisition accounting and impairment of
goodwill

KREHEEREREE

Refer to note 2(d) and 2 (m) to the accounting policy
and financial disclosure in note 40 and note 19
BRI FE2(d) R 2(m) A2 5T R M FF40 K MY 5E 1989
IS E R TR

The key audit matter
MRFHER

During the year, the Group acquired voting equity
interest of Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL") for a total
consideration of NTD92,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB18,505,000). Judgement is required
over the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired.
RAFER HHEBEAERERN A %92,000,0007T
(HE8E R4 AR #18,505,0007T) EETE M AR A A
(ITEMRDOBREROER RETWEEERE
EORA T EREE /B -

We consider these estimates to be significant audit
risks because of the impact the acquisitions have on
the financial statements, and the inherent judgement
involved in estimating the fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired.
ERNWEEEHMERROTE  ARMEE PR
BENBENRTERMS RO ER HE - A2 EAD
RRZEMEFTBERNERAR -

Further, we consider the carrying value of goodwill
resulting from the acquisition and the risk over potential
impairment to be a significant audit risk because of
the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, which are the basis of the
assessment of the recoverable amount.

SR AN - B RO B DA BT il AT Ui 0] & &8 6 R 2R 2R & 0 TR ORI K2
BLERAT P RAEE T T 1 - Az BA R R T E
FHEERREE RBLRE R R EERERT AR -

T8 N A% BRI R

How the matter was addressed in our audit
FPREERERNGE

Audit approach:
Fit

evaluated the basis upon which the Group
identified the assets and liabilities acquired,
including all possible intangible assets, and
allocated the purchase price consideration to the
assets and liabilities acquired

Al EEEBRIMBBEERBE (BIEMRE
AR B EE) AL URBEERESE
EMBENEENAR

tested the principles of the Group’s discounted
cash flow model
A, E£ERESRENRA

compared the cash flows used in the impairment
model to the output of the Group’s budgeting
process and against the understanding we
obtained about the business areas through
our audit, and considered actual performance
against budget to assess if these cash flows were
reasonable

HRERAUMREANRERE SEXEGFUES
BIEPOERRAZERNE P HEBHELY
BRRETHER YRREHERKRFEAEET
¥ U EZEReneE e R

obtained independent valuations of assets and
liabilities acquired as at the completion date
prepared by experts engaged by the Group
DG EEEMEANIERMMBBEENE
ERTEK BN EBEM GRS EEE

assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer and assessed
the reasonableness of their conclusions having
regard to the key assumptions

FPEBMAAEMNER O RFEIE ARIE

BREFNIZRIFAERENEREEAIE

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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used external data to evaluate the key inputs and
assumptions for growth and discount rates

0 FASNEDBUR SV = 2 A BIE Rt ig & R ARIR
PR H B R R

performed sensitivity analysis on the impairment
models
EEREREETBRESN

evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
related to the judgments and assumptions over
acquisition and impairment of goodwill

gt EEREREERER &P E R RER
FTENREESEH



Independent Auditor's Report

Valuation of development and formation costs of
cemetery assets and inventories (completed burial
plots)

EREENARRBIBRFERER (BRI EN) 80
B

Refer to note 2(j) and 2(k) to the accounting policy and
financial disclosure in notes 20 and 21 to the financial

statements

B2 B RE2() K 2(k) R & 5 BUR e B 75 3R 3R MY 5E20 K%
21 ER K E

The key audit matter

FRFEHER

The Group held burial plots under development and
completed burial plots for sale of RMB7,406,000 and
RMB984,000 respectively as at 31 December 2016.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (“NRV”). The cost of inventories may
not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their
selling prices have declined. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group has written down these
inventories of RMB9,015,000.
EER-_ZE—RNET_A=+—HEAHRETEN
&Enﬂ%%%f@ 3R KA R 7,406, 0007_5&/\1%%1’5

984,0007T ° 7 & &R Ak AN BA ] 38 )F & ([ ] B3R %
B]) 2 BIRE TG - (17 O IR E - 18I Em s

BT Btz B FERE - HE-_T—RF
+T-A=Z+—BULFE B£EMBEEEREEEA
R #59,015,0007T °

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items taking into account the estimated time
of realisation.
EREETFENARAIZEFELBEER &5
BEMNFENER FEEEBRMERNTFENFEA
EEWLF ATET RN -

Management calculates the NRV at each period
end based on the estimated selling price less selling
expenses, which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated
selling price of individual product, including historical
experience of selling products of similar nature and
expectation of future sales based on current market

conditions.
MIEMETE‘EIJ BEREHERIRGTESHARGA
'''''' B3R FE aETENERBASERAELEX

HET R BRR BREEENETHERUTEERNER
A RIRBEBTRE R REELEL 28R -

We focused on this area due to the estimation of
provision for inventories involves significant judgement
and various uncertainties as a result of changing
customer demand and competitors actions.

AEHBMBAT ISR ENETFENRERTIRE
%;;\Jg NREPERRBEFEZITREUNZETH

T8 N A% BRI R

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EHPREERMEENS &

Audit approach:
Fit

o understood and validated the control procedures
performed by management, including its
procedures in estimating the NRV of the
development and formation costs of cemetery
assets and inventories

o EENBREEEEBNITNEIEREF SREME
%%ﬁéﬁﬁ%&ﬁki)ﬂz$m7 SR FERTFED
27

° tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected
inventory items, by comparing the selling price
subsequent to the year end, against the carrying
values of these individual inventory items

o DB GAAGEEFEEE 2 ERRE T
AP ERFEEANFRENEEEARE
BEfE—LE

o evaluated the Group’s sales plan on the realisation
of the development and formation costs of
cemetery assets and inventories which takes into
account costs to completion based on historical
results and prevailing market conditions

o Mt BEREKEREEMNRERKIKERTF
*f"ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ el BEREF RBEBEEER
&R RS A e TRCAR

o assessed the reasonableness of the sales
forecasts used in the Group's provision model by
considering actual performance against budget

e FBAMERKREREETLEH FE E%5E
BERE PR ANEETRASRT

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Impairment of prepayment for purchase of goods

RERMAMRANRKE

Refer to note 2(m) to the accounting policy and
financial disclosure in note 22 to the financial
statements
F 2B FE2(m)) & 5HIEUCR K& B T Rk I 52280 BE 7%
AR

The key audit matter
FRETEHER

The Group prepaid to its supplier for purchase of marble
stones prior to the delivery of the goods.

S S BB E AR AP WEE Y AITE ST A R R S A
B FH o

In determining whether non-refundable prepayments
are recoverable, the Group must make judgements over
the likely future sales of the tombstones or consider to
dispose the goods at the prevailing market prices taking
into account the cost of disposal. Where insufficient
sales are forecasted by the Group or the fair value less
cost of disposal is lower than the carrying amount, an
impairment is recorded.
REETARAZENFREESAIREIR . EX£H
W 7R S ELRE B P BE R 2R 85 5 RR A MU B S0 E R
EXFBREBUENTEBEERER W EXREME
AEHERET R R TFERHERAERREE - A
OBk —ITRRE

This is a significant risk area as there is inherent
uncertainty regarding the future sales of tombstones
and estimation of the recoverable amount.
BERARSEREENRKEE LT KO S ENHE
FEBEENTHEERE-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
FHPEREREENSE

Audit approach:
BRI

o evaluated the supplier’s capability of providing the
goods to the Group
o CRMAHEER SEERERHERNEED

o challenged the assumptions underlying the
forecasts for future sales by analysing the accuracy
of historical estimates of recoverability, and
comparing forecasts made in prior periods to
actual outcomes

o  BEEBHMBESTREAEMET R ERIT
VA R 38 7 BRFRI P ETE RN B B PR A5 RAETTLL T
SR R TEOBI ) LR R AR B2 1 S B

o evaluated the appropriateness of the resale values
estimated by the management based on market
information obtained by the Group

e ERE SEXEETRENTSEER FHEEE
PRV EEBERERE
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’'s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

T8 N A% BRI R
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Eﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂgiﬁfﬁ

AZBMNERRABETBRESUBR
EETFHEANRFRERMEMNEAXN
B8 RR RO - 30 B BB AR BED B R A B
AR - AZBEIER BTEBERREAZE
AR B R - Rt 2 SN BIEE M B /9 - R
R TSR AREN AT FEMEMAL
B EgREEMAL-

BEZERSKTFNZE  BXTRERR
(BEENER) ETNERRERRCE
FE ) BE R 38 BRI - 5 3R BR At AT A i BRRF
HaR ol - INRAIETRHAA BASE AR PR (&R
AR EFEERERESEMBRRA
EREEERTE - B SRR RE R E
R EHERFR A

R (EBEIPEAD BITEimRES -
AL BT Ve R RS TR
AL - AKX BT T

o BAMFHESRA M BRI EMEERIER
MEFEERBRRANRR  FAEZE
BBt RBITRA R A RIERE
RMEENETRERLARBMNER
REUEER NI RBER B
& BRI RERL - SO BAEHE
- Bk - B R BE 2 3R PR A AR T B B
BRI - KRR EKEF
BHROBAHERBANO AR -

EEZB AR AEES] - ARGHE
BRABRANEZREF BYFERE
BEREANPEHRORBRERER

o BRER
R
Ex)
o FHHEEMEKAGHERIELRRE MU

RESERERMEFT A REREER

LeE-
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

T8 N A% BRI R
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2017

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P0O5049
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and O her Comprenensive Income

4re Bm S E M I S

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %Zi_ T AF+A=t+—HBLFE

2016 2015
—N"E —E—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®TRT AREF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue EESE 4(a) 57,342 61,633
Cost of sales $HE AR (35,149) (31,146)
Gross profit EFA 22,193 30,487
Other income HAn g A 5 6,760 3,239
Selling expenses HERX (5.841) (6,289)
Administrative expenses THHAX (30,230) (30,244)
Other operating expenses HEMgEis (10,468) (4,112)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 6(c) (15,129) -
Loss from operations BEBE (32,715) (6,919)
Finance costs BRE A 6(a) (184) (264)
Loss before taxation (5353000 oF -] 6 (32,899) (7,183)
Income tax Fri5Ht 7 (1,727) (2,582)
Loss for the year FEBE (34,626) (9,765)
Other comprehensive income/ FERM2EWRS
(loss) for the year (E?E)
ltem that will not be reclassified CEFHEEBEEN
to profit or loss: IE B:
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BEER LR
of land and buildings BFrEMAR
held for own use (FE4L) 153 (619)
ltem that may be reclassified HigngesEmnia
subsequently to iTE sHIIEE
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BB EE AR AR LA
translation of financial ONZETS ([FER B %
statements of operations %) 2 s AT
outside the People’s EAZERZTE:
Republic of China (“non-
PRC operations”):
Exchange differences arising FIEE N ZH
during the year 3,008 (290)
Other comprehensive income/ FEHMU2ERE (&
(loss) for the year, 18) (MBRFR{R)
net of income tax 10 3,161 (909)
Total comprehensive loss for FEZAEGIREHE (NK
the year, net of income tax FR81R) (31,465) (10,674)

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Are Bm A EM WS R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZE—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AR®TR ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss attributable to: PTATREGER:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIEZ FS N 11 (31,520) (9,402)
Non-controlling interests SEfE IR A (3,106) (363)
(34,626) (9,765)
Total comprehensive loss DTATREEREERS
attributable to: #:
Owners of the Company ZA/NISIEZZ =N (28,429) (10,534)
Non-controlling interests AR == (3,036) (140)
(31,465) (10,674)
Loss per share BRBGR 11
Basic and diluted BERREE RMBAER®(4.25) cents®  RMBARE(1.27) cents?

i

BURiE e

SR ENE

il(l’}:
48

The notes on pages 73 to 208 form part of these financial %738 % ZOSEZM‘JEE
statements. Z—#n
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra IR

As at 31 December 2016 A -ZE—XF+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—Z—RE —ET—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®TRT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 14 38,592 33,751
Investment property WEME 16 4,812 4,438
Prepaid lease payments TERTEE R K 15 3,507 3,589
Intangible assets mEEE 17 1,237 2
Deposit for acquisition of equity U BE A — A B R A
interests in a company wmZEE 22 - 15,920
Deposits for hire of funeral THARBEE MBERT
parlours and funeral P2 iRE
services centres 22 1,700 1,700
Other rental deposit HEtiEEZRe 22 22 -
Goodwill Bk 19 2,821 -
52,691 59,400
CURRENT ASSETS RENRE
Financial assets designated EEREATFES AR
as at fair value through W I EE
profit or loss 18 38,640 34,777
Available-for-sale investment AtEERE 23 = 1,500
Development and formation costs B3 & B 37 AN 20 7,406 14,333
Inventories & 21 1,526 2,692
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 7 18 28(a) 11 7
Trade and other receivables B 5 & B b U SR IE 22 53,664 59,588
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERNK 15 82 82
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMBEEEY 24 98,550 98,712
199,879 211,691
CURRENT LIABILITIES mB AR
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A e FRIE 25 8,696 5,963
Receipts in advance TE W GRIE 26 93,911 88,842
Current portion of bank RITEE 2D
borrowings 27 1,023 614
Current taxation BN ERFR 18 28(a) 3,394 2,969
Provisions B 29 2,851 1,562
(109,875) (99,950)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEimENAE
Receipts in advance TEWRIE 26 118 106
Bank borrowings R7EE 27 9,959 6,952
(10,077) (7,058)
NET ASSETS HERE 132,618 164,083
FEEDEEERAT - REER
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ARE WISl

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z—XF+-_HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REFE —hF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AR®TT ARET T
EQUITY Ha
Equity attributable to owners F2ATFHBEAEEEI
of the Company
Share capital [N 30 69,218 69,218
Reserves iz 64,652 93,081
133,870 162,299
Non-controlling interests JERERRIER (1,252) 1,784
TOTAL EQUITY EoEE 132,618 164,083

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on HEZE —-Z

24 March 2017. TEEEAD -

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman
2R M
E

The notes on pages 73 to 208 form part of

these financial statements. Z—
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Kim Eun Back
Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Ohamges In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z—-F

;\\/ AN ¢

Attributable to owners of the Company

/N

N\ 7/

g / N\ /o

EH)R

RF+ZA=+—RHIEFE

SARREABLE
Foreign
Statutory  Properties currency  Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory surplus  revaluation translation compensation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
LY
EERR wE SWER BERZ
(23 kg AHER EEHE 1 B {11 ] 11 ARG RHER @ nERE  NAeR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETn  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETn  ARETRT  ARBTR  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A-8 69,218 220633 (16,261) 86 1,550 2513 (20,282 7812 (93,19) 172,833 1,924 174,751
Loss for the year 3| - - - - - - - - (9.402) (9402 (363) (9.765)
Defict on revaluation of land and HEERIHRETZ
buildings held for own use BB - - - - - (619) - - - (619) - (619)
Exchange differences on translation RERPERH 2
of financa statements of BHRRE ENEE
non-PRC operations - - - - - - (513) - - (513) 3 (290)
Other comprehensive (lossfincome Afb2E (B8) /& - - - - - (619 (513) - - (1132 m (909)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TFEREFRLE - - - - - (619) (513 - (9.402) (10,534) (140) (10,674)
Lapse of share options granted BREBRELR - - - - - - - (59) 59 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZ$-EF+ZR=+-H 69,218 220633 (16,261) 86 1,550 1,954 (20,795 7,753 (102,539) 162,299 1,784 164,083
At 1 January 2016 RZ$-A%§-A-H 69,218 20633 (16,261) 86 1,550 1,954 (20,795) 7753 (102,539) 162,299 1,784 164,083
Loss for the year TFEER - - - - - - - - (31.520) (31.520) (3.106) (34,626)
Surplus on revaluation of and and BRI RET MR
buildings held for own use - - - - - 153 - - - 153 - 153
Exchange differences on tranglation AEFRRER AR RER
of financial statements of LEREE
non-PRC operations - - - - - - 2,938 - - 2,938 70 3,008
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 153 2938 - - 3,001 70 3,161
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - 153 2938 - (31,520 (28,429 (3,036) (31,465)

Transfer to statutory reserve
Lapse of share options granted

BEHERERN

At 31 December 2016

RZ§-RE+ZAZT-H

69,218

220,633

(16,261)

(17,857) 1676

(133,986)

133870 (1,25)

132,618

The notes on pages 73 to 208 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\/\E/Eui//w i'%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

70

2016 2015
—E—REFE —HRF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P AR®TTT AERETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Loss before taxation R A A E 18 (32,899) (7,183)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of prepaid lease TET & 8
payments 6(c) 82 82
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & E ¥ 5 6(c) 505 -
Impairment loss on other Hf e W R I RVE B 1R
receivables 6(c) - 382
Impairment loss on prepayments BNRIERERRE 5,052 -
Impairment loss on property, W BB &
plant and equipment REREBE 6(c) = 1,045
Write-down of inventories 175 M 6(c) 1,129 -
Impairment loss on goodwill P EE1a 6(c) 15,129 -
Write-down of development and B93¢5k v7 5k 2
formation costs sy 6(c) 7,886 _
Prepayments written off SEENEO R 6(c) 4,265 760
Finance costs B E A 6(a) 184 264
(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of ~ #{EBE A 2 i &
land and buildings held for BFEH (A%,
own use s Al 5 (338) 2
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE HE &
plant and equipment BBz (W)
E1a 5 (3) 1,400
Depreciation e 6(c) 4,717 5,278
Interest income FEUW A 5 (914) (1,764)
Net realised and unrealised BEAEAFEA
(gainy/loss on financial assets BmMBEED
designated as at fair value ﬁfﬁ&ﬂi“
through profit or loss (W) EEFE 5 (1,577) 277
Net exchange gain SN i 2 ) EE 5 (3,476) (2,337)
Provisions for future costs of BEBEREERERZL
delivering funeral services REBERE 2
under funeral service deeds R IR AN B 6(c) 1,107 1,558
33,748 6,947
849 (236)
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEE &85
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  FE R A (1€ 10) 93 (1,889)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and g5 RHMAE
other receivables WeskE ($#0) ,/m (147) 2,596
Decrease in financial assets BT AL ATFERA
designated as at fair value Bam WBEERD
through profit or loss 691 11,370
Decrease in deposits for hire of HABEER
funeral parlours and funeral BERBH L2
services centres e R - 1,000
(Increase)/decrease in B B I A S AR AR
development and (1) A
formation costs (570) 527
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 NEMEN
other payables FIBE M, CRLAD) 1,999 (2,233)
Decrease in receipts in advance TEMGRIE R (2,241) (2,991)
(175) 8,380

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meERenRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®TT AREF T
CASH GENERATED FROM BEmMBRS
OPERATIONS 674 8,144
Income taxes paid ERFSH
The People’s Republic of i AR AR
China (“PRC") (rEl) (1,302) (899)
Taiwan =N (11) (173)
(1,313) (1,072)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ wEEE (FRA)/
GENERATED FROM FiRBi&Ra
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (639) 7,072
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B_EEH
Decrease/(increase) in available- A ERE
for-sale investments w (3En) 1,500 (1,500)
Payment for the purchase MUY BE K
of property, plant and BN
equipment (4,996) (3,487)
Payment for the purchase of HUEELEEZ
intangible assets INE: (1,698) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BEX
property, plant and X TSR
equipment 4 27
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of WHEME 2 A
cash acquired (B 2B E) 40 (2,390) -
Interest received Bl F B 914 1,764
Payment of deposit WiE—F A A
for acquisition of equity AR RE R
interests in a company - (15,872)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING #EFEIFAREFHE
ACTIVITIES (6,666) (19,068)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from new bank FERITEEY
borrowings Fris /18 3,511 34,726
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE (854) (35,327)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE (184) (264)
FEEDEEERAT - REER

71



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\/\E/Eui//lb i‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A2 —ZE—RF+T_HA=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—RE —T-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
P RE AR®TTT AREF T
NET CASH GENERATED P EBRRES (FRA)
FROM/(USED IN) BesH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,473 (865)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRBEEB/YRIBH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,832) (12,861)
CASH AND CASH W—B—HZHE&R
EQUIVALENTS ReEEYD
AT 1 JANUARY 98,712 109,086
EFFECT OF FOREIGN IIREFEEHRE
EXCHANGE RATES CHANGES 4,670 2,487
CASH AND CASH R+-A=+—BZ
EQUIVALENTS BeRBEERD
AT 31 DECEMBER 98,550 98,712
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES BeRBEERD
OF CASH AND CASH e
EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITNFEIRS 24 98,550 98,712
The notes on pages 73 to 208 form part of these financial £873E EZOSEZ ek Rz Eera B mk
statements. Z — B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. Its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the provision of
funeral and related services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), Taiwan and Hong Kong, sale of burial plots and
tombstones and provision of cemetery maintenance services
in Vietnam and provision of elderly care and related services
in Taiwan. The Company and its subsidiaries are herein
collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address of the
Company’s registered office and principal place of business
are The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre, Oleander Way,
802 West Bay Road, PO. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-
1208, Cayman Islands and Unit B3, 4/F., Summit Building, 30
Man Yue Street,, Hung Hom, Hong Kong respectively.

1.

—RE#H

PEAMEEARAT ([AadE])R
BERERESAFEN_TTAF_HA
—tMRERSESEMKL A —HE
HEeAREERAR HBROHNR_-ZTZN
FAANBEDTEBMAXRSMARAR
(Mt Frl) B AR (TRIZ4R ) £
HERERT RBIR KL -

ARFETEREREFR -HNBR
AIEEEBRRPEARKLME ([+
B]) aZREBREEEREER
B RUEEEEMRERRIEHE
ERERE UEREERHEEZ N
HEARBE - AATREMBATRT
N AT ARNER] AR aE MW i
ERERTEDEMWE 2D AR
The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road, PO.
Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208,
Cayman Islands } % 7% 41 ) R #8 573055
B 5 T K EAEB3E ©

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 1%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
2.

i MRt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ 20
Hr 15 R R T EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —_ZE—"FE+_A=+—HULEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ESiIBE ()

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) mEBKHR2EE
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The functional currencies of its subsidiaries
are Renminbi (“"RMB"), New Taiwan dollars (“NTD"),
US$, Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and Vietnamese
dong ("VND") for subsidiaries incorporated/established
in the People's Republic of China (“the PRC"),
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam respectively. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated, which is different from the
functional currency of the Company as majority of the
Group’s transactions are denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- investment properties (see note 2(e));
- freehold land and buildings (see note 2(f)); and

- financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 2(h)).

BE_T—RF+-_A=t+—H
HFEEZHEEMBRRBEARR
AINEMB AR -

FAAREERBERM B RER A
BAERZIEREEBEREL
E% ([N ER T8 AR F
ZHEHEBERET - RPEAR
KB [HE] & FERE
Bl R Z B AR 2 e
EBDRBARE (TARE]) -
el ((#akl) T 8T
(Ex)) RdmE (T8EE]) -
HRAEERIEIRZTIAAR
BitE BRAMBHRERTIUAR
B (HEARBZEEETR)
25 BREEERI REEEY
MR AZEREO TS

REMEHRREAERZFTER
ERELKAREE A TEER
BETIAEAFESIRR (HIA T X
PREl &Rt R FTERE)

- REWE(RHE2) -

—  KAEELHREF (RH
F200) &

- BERBRAFEFABRZZ
Mg EE (RME2h)) °
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 42.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BY 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —-F—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. E®:H K (#8)
(Continued)

NFETZA=+—RHILFE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(9

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

(0

B RS B R SR IR AR

MEARRASEES 2B -F
AEBEARKZEELHRERER
MAEE R BB EREYE
BOENIZEZZOHRE  RIAK
Bzt ERE -NFHEAEERS
BREBBRENE - ZEEEHEE
A (AAREREMTHEE)

o Jin Bk

\;
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AIBEMERZIESBESMG
AHEGEAFTAREBBERER
N BEERHERBHARIL -EE
NRAIAZ &R X5 LB ERM
SERNRAREZRSREEZIE
I R IR BN RS M B
RS ERIR BH o 0 48 1 IR RE DR
R KEARREZRZAELZ
AERERAZEBREREKEZ
MR-

RS IR IR AR B EE
HEEEA B AR MA
SEARBUILEZZRERHE A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
or loss of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(0

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncomes Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

(0

(d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
+ 2
B S 2 MY 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

BB~ B R SRR IR A ()

(d) Business combinations (Continued) (d)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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(d) Business combinations (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2= —Z —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 2(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment property is stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value, unless they are still in
the course of construction or development at the end
of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment property
is accounted for as described in note 2(r)(v).

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 2(g)), and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
2(9).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

B M et

NFETZA=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

The freehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed by qualified valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
of these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note
2(m)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

freehold land is not depreciated,

buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

Leasehold 3 to 10 years or over

improvements the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 2 to 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the properties revaluation reserve
to accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

(g) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(e));
and

land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 2(e)).

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
+ 2
B S 2 MY 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued) (9 HEEE (&)

(iii) Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for as
investment property under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and the building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL"), “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:EBE®(#8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B %< st
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:BE®(#8)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the “other net gain/(loss)” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 18.

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or () financial assets at FVTPL. The Group
designated certain items as AFS financial assets on
initial recognition of financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluatioin reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

(h)

TR (&)
BOFEGARD 2 BEEE
(#&)
BATESABEIMBEET
BAVERFE BEHEEZEM
WakBERNGERa kEte
miERA e, (FR)
FEE ] IH B R - AT E TR
18RI T NEEE ©

A ENBEERLBIEER
AHEERRENBRE@QER R
FEYRIR : (bR 2R B E © 3(0)
BAFEFABRBIVBEEZ
IOTET R - AEER YA ERIR
RFEAANBRZHBEERD
BEETHERAHLENBE
o

AEEMMFDBEAAHEEME
BE BRREMSHEE A
REBEFNERERRIZQF
Bt 8 - BIREIRN T A EH S
WA Z AT EEE TS
BEZREAEZEH A HEER
AIRE 2 BB - Ty iE s iR o
A ENBEEREE Hi
EPREMEEPRETRER LR
REBMHRE TR -ERELE
HHE T RBER - BRI EE
EFEEART 2 Rt st BB

B OEERHE-

A 4 R AR TR AR B A K
B R AR 2. 2 43 e ST 5 £ 4
B R



Notes to the Financial Statements
+ 2
BTS2 MY 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h)y B#ITA (&)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and other loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. E®:H K (#8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
+ 2
B S R MY 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (hy B#ITA (&)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:BE®(#8)
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(i)

)

Intangible assets (Continued)

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— trademark 5 to 10 years

— computer system 2 to 2.5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognition on disposal, or
when no future economic beneifits are expected from
use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognised of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site which
will be completed for sale and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
2(t)). Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the burial plots.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(k)

0)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(j)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T —"F+_A=1+—HLEFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
() Impairment of other receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables and other receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (that is the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables and other receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments;

- available-for-sale investment; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ES:RE ()

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H = - =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:BE®(#8)
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(o) Share-based payments

(1)

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly
to accumulated losses).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Share-based payments (Continued)

(i) Share options granted to consultants
Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services, unless
the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 s MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(e), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 s MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(@) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of cremation
services, cemetery services, funeral arrangement
services, funeral services in funeral parlours
and funeral service centres under the Group’s
management, elderly care services and
consultancy services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(i) Sale of goods including tombstone

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts and returns.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii)  Sales of burial plots

(iv)

)

(vi)

Revenue from sales of burial plots is recognised
when the contract is signed by the buyer, a
significant amount of deposits of the contracted
value received and the relevant identified burial
plots are delivered to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received from buyers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under “receipts in
advance”.

Cemetery maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of cemetery
maintenance services is deferred and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the remaining
estimated service period.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(s)

(®)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of operations outside PRC (“non-PRC
operations”) are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2015, are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (that is a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a non-PRC
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a non-PRC operation, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes non-PRC operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in profit or
loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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FEFATRR ()

(Continued)

(u) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is @ member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE®(#F)
(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(v)

(b)  (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Company’s Executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants:

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

3.
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Change in presentation of consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

In the current year, the directors of the Company decided
to change the classification of certain line items in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income by reclassifying certain staff costs
previously required in administrative expenses as part of the
Group's cost of sales and selling expenses to better reflect
the financial information of the Group’s activities. Prior year
figures of RMB5,241,000 have been re-presented to reflect
the new presentation. The reclassification has no net effect
on the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The effect of changes in presentation for the prior year by
line items presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

3.

FERMAT R AEIERTE &M
BEER([FRMBEHREE
A1) (#&)

E B RAME E W% 255 1Y
g7/

RAFE ARREFREENHZEE
s R EMEEKRERNOZ257H Kk
AIHERBITRFE D B TRAER
DI BB MR EAN G B R H e B S
=8 - BEFEEEARKS,241,0007T
EEHMEZINARRIN 2577 - EH
DETEHAKREBRE—_T—AF =
AZ+ AL FENEEERFE

B o

iy

I

RiZeBEEEtE2EKERME5 L
—FERBZEITAEG 2 EN

As previously

stated Adjustments Restated

SERIER Y e %]

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT AREETTT

Cost of sales SHE KA (26,387) (4,759) (31,146)

Selling expenses HERX (5,807) (482) (6,289)

Administrative expenses TR X2 (35,485) 5,241 (30,244)
Change in loss —T-RFEEREH

for the year 2015 (67,679) - (67,679)

No consolidated statement of financial position as at RZZE—hE—-—A—BALEZIHGREH

1 January 2015 has been presented as the change in
accounting policy and re-classifications disclosed above have
no effects on the financial position of the Group presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect
of the end of the previous financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. EXRTRSBEH

Revenue (a) &=
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration EEHEREAMBPIEERS KM
received and receivable for the services rendered to BEPHEEmMmE YN RER 2K
customers and goods sold to customers. The amount B2 RATE - FAEEEWEER
of each significant category of revenue during the year ZeRmN:
is as follows:
2016 2015
—Z—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Funeral services and cremation REEEE BEER
services provided in funeral BERB R LR
parlous and funeral service 2 BIERBE R A
centres under the Group’s AR
management 52,386 57,789
Funeral arrangement services BT HERTS 2,643 3,067
Funeral related consultancy BEBEDARS
services 892 -
Sale of burial plots TH e E 425 736
Sale of tombstones HEREE 90 40
Cemetery maintenance services — ERE{E& R 1 1
Elderly care services B 905 -
57,342 61,633
Segment information (b) DEER

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by a mixture of both business lines
(products and services) and geography. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group has acquired
BLL. Consequently, a new segment, elderly care
services, has been included in the segment reporting.

In @ manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Company’s
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”), the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

REBIR D MEIREER - Mo &P
Ty A (B MR ) Mt
BENER -BE_T—RF+=
A=Z+—RLLFE ~EERET
EMe AL BERDBRRE IAE
ERBIERF D EL

A5 B LA B B R 0 B KR RHE R
EMAARBMITES ([ATE
2D (MEXBLERRE)ER
ABMEH -2 HTA2IATHE
fE R 5 0 8B - BB R ERE L D B

SAAEAR A T AT 3R 25 548 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= - —
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

AETZAST-RILEE
4. EXTRSBEH(E)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(i)  Funeral services — Taiwan
Provision of funeral arrangement services
to funeral services deed holders and related
consultancy services in Taiwan.

(i) Funeral services — Hong Kong
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Hong Kong.

(iii)  Funeral services — the PRC

Provision of funeral and cremation services in
funeral parlours and funeral service centres
in the PRC under the Group’s management,
pursuant to the respective management
agreements entered into with the owners of
funeral parlours and funeral service centres, and
other related consultancy services.

(iv) Funeral services — Vietnam
Sale of burial plots and tombstones and
provision of cemetery maintenance services in
Vietnam.

(v)  Elderly care services — Taiwan
Provision of elderly care and related services in
Taiwan.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Executive Directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, receipts in advance, provisions and current
tax liabilities attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
=+ 2
PR et
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. B E¥HRSBEH (\)
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and loss of
each segment without allocation of valuation gain/
loss on investment property, other income, central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax.
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive Directors
are provided with segment information concerning
interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation, loss/gain
on disposal of property, plant and equipment, write
down of development and formation costs and
inventories, impairment loss on goodwill, impairment
loss on prepayments, impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment, impairment loss on other
receivables, prepayments written off, provision for
future costs of delivering funeral services under funeral
services deeds, net realised and unrealised gain/loss
on financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, income tax expenses, and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.

revenue,

"a‘ FE BEREE (E)
Wa kA2 EZESHELE
ZHE MR RIRRZE D B E
HEENERBHMEL 2 H it
EEa) i—f#&%ﬁ‘g‘ﬁc’

DEEEIESDITEEZ BT
&%E BRNEIEEMEHE
Uezs /B8 EURA - P RITIR
XA BB R AN R BTG R o Lt Th 5k
ERD B M D ERB AT
FEERFN-
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZET— "F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

Taiwan  Ho
2
RMB'000

4,

ERURSBEH ()

(b) DEHER (F)
i %ﬁgﬁ/gﬁﬁﬁ (#)
BEEMEBEE_ZT—RNER_ZF
—HEF+ZRA=+—BLFEZ
BIR 5 BE R ATk 5 JE R IR M AT
EERMIIHRES B2 ERH
AT

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE-ES-AE+ZB=t+-HLERE

Elderly

care

Funeral services services

RRE R
ng Kong PRC Vietnam Taiwan Total
L] HE e Bl @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TR

AR®BTT AR®TR ARBTR ARWTR

Reportable segment revenue A RE D HS

~ Revenue from external -RENREF Y&
customers 1,985 M 53,195 516 905 57,342

Reportable segment (loss)/profit A& & 53 (&518) /% F (6,795) (402) 8,086 (15,122) (15,862) (30,095)
Interest income S ON 40 - 867 1 - 908
Interest expenses MERZ 184 - - - - 184
Depreciation and amortisation AW 47 % J 88

for the year 193 2 4,071 374 488 5128
Gain on disposal of property,  MEWE - FE k&L

plant and equipment ) - - 3 - - 3
Write down of development  #USIF% R AR

and formation costs and FE

inventories - - - 9,015 - 9,015
Impairment loss on goodwill ~ EEFIEEE - - - - 15,129 15,129
Impairment loss on BRRECRESR

prepayments - - - 5,052 - 5,052
Prepayments written off HMBEBENTR 417 94 - - = 4,265
Provision for future costs of ~ BEREERBRLRE

delivering funeral services BERBZARKAK

under funeral services deeds & 1,107 - - - - 1,107
Net realised and unrealised REARATENAER

gain on financial assets LIBEEZEERR

designated as at fair value REGWEFE

through profit or loss 1,577 - - - - 1,577
Income tax expenses FriEHR % - - 1,721 - - 1,727
Reportable segment assets RENDEE 164,837 591 49,832 26,123 9,335 250,718
Additions to non-current RENFEFRDHE

segment assets during the AE

year - 33 2,669 49 22,683 25,434
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AIf& HEHEE 105,511 815 8,694 2,635 671 118,326
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H = - =

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BT R P vt

—RETZRA=t+—HILFE

4. EXBRISBEH ()

(b) DEBER (&)
DEIFAE BEERAE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-Z-RE+-A=t+-BI-5E

Funeral services

BERY
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Total
ag B H il @5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE®ETT AREFr ARETE ARETR
Reportable segment revenue [R5 5 B a
— Revenue from external —REMEP K
customers 2,318 749 57,789 777 61,633
Reportable segment AREDH
(loss)/profit (B1R),/ %% (5,954) (303) 7,699 (1,453) (11)
Interest income MEHA 12 - 1,265 1 1,278
Interest expenses FERE 228 - - - 228
Depreciation and amortisation 74X [ 37 % & 2 &5
for the year 236 41 3,737 391 4,405
Loss on disposal of property, & BiFE kEREL
plant and equipment BB - (12) (177) - (189)
Impairment loss on property,  #1% - BiE k& 2R E
plant and equipment i 923 6 - - 929
Impairment loss on other Htb UGB R EBE
receivables - - 130 - 130
Prepayment written off MHTER A 760 - - - 760
Provision for future costs of ~ IRIBEBRKZHIIR
delivering funeral services BEMRS 2 RRAA
under funeral services B
deeds 1,558 - - - 1,558
Net realised and unrealised 1B RIRATE JrME’\
loss on financial assets LHBEEZCER
designated as at fair value R AREREEFE
through profit or loss (277) - - - (277
Income tax expenses FERRZ 173 - 2,409 - 2,582
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 157,258 654 51,943 35,108 244,963
Deposit for acquisition of ARBBR—ERF
equity interests in a Ea RS
company 15,920 - - - 15,920
Additions to non-current RERFEFRBDDH
segment assets during the BE
year 47 - 3,058 382 3,487
Reportable segment liabilities [ #5525 B E & 96,242 818 6,001 2,256 105,317
There are no inter-segment sales during the year REEMEOEEEE (2T
(2015: Nil). FomE) e
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBEXHRSBEIHE (1K)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, 7 f[v’ ":’\‘ﬁﬂﬁ Bm BE-B
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items EREMER 2%k
2016 2015
—ZE—REF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT ARBFT
Revenue =3
Total reportable segment revenue 7] #4555 B Uk #8542
and consolidated revenue AU E 57,342 61,633
Profit or loss Ba
Total reportable segment loss REEINIEFPEEZ
derived from Group's external AmEDEEEEE
customers (30,095) (11)
Other income H AU 6,760 3,239
Finance costs BE KA (184) (264)
Unallocated head office and RORBH R AR
corporate expenses
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — 7 & & # 3 (176) (955)
— Auditors’ remuneration —ZEETE & (857) (813)
— Legal and professional fee —EENBEER (575) (964)
— Staff cost (including —BINA (BE
directors’ remuneration) EEE) (7,136) (5,818)
— Operating lease charges: —EEHEET N
minimum lease payments SIEHEER R (49) (378)
— Others —HA (587) (1,219)
Consolidated loss before taxation 474 B i g E518 (32,899) (7,183)
Assets gE
Total reportable segment assets T#E%ﬁa‘ﬁéf%%@@ 250,718 244,963
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHRRARIEE
corporate assets
— Cash and cash equivalents —-BHekReFEYD 1,556 5,988
— Deposit for acquisition of equity —ﬁHE’\HﬁZﬁﬁﬁA—FEJ
interests in a company NEIZ R IES - 15,920
— Other deposits and —Hinige &
prepayments TEfT5RIE 225 161
— Property, plant and equipment ~ —#7% - Jﬂ%&&ﬁ 53 224
— Others —H A 18 3,835
Consolidated total assets REAERE 252,570 271,091
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

BA 15 R M 5
EZFE-XF+ZA=+—HLEFE
4., BEREBRSBEH (W)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (b) ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*{( '%Ei o
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items HRETE W e EEB
(Continued) ERAMBELH K (&
2016 2015
—ZT—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Liabilities &R
Total reportable segment liabilities T ¥ 9 2 & B4 58 118,326 105,317
Unallocated head office and RoBBE Rk
corporate liabilities NABE 1,626 1,691
Consolidated total liabilities FeBEAR 119,952 107,008
Other items HMttImE
Interest income FEHA
Reportable segment total A¥RE D H 4R 908 1,278
Unallocated head office and ROBBE R
corporate total NGIEEEE] 6 486
Consolidated total ok 914 1,764
Interest expenses MERXE
Reportable segment total ARSI AR%E 184 228
Unallocated head office and RAOBE R
corporate total NIFER - 36
Consolidated total RE KRR 184 264
Depreciation and amortisation & K i
Reportable segment total ARSI AREE 5,128 4,405
Unallocated head office and RAOBRBIH R
corporate total NI FERS 176 955
Consolidated total e AR 5,304 5,360
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWE  BEREHK
property, plant and equipment &=,/ (E518)
Reportable segment total AISRE o BB 4R KA 3 (189)
Unallocated head office and RAOBBE R
corporate total UNGIFCEC = (1,211)
Consolidated total e 3 (1,400)
Impairment loss on property, W BEREEZRE
plant and equipment 518
Reportable segment total ARED LR - 929
Unallocated head office and RAOMBIH R
corporate total N EHBRE - 116
Consolidated total e 18R - 1,045
Impairment loss E fth U RIE 2
on other receivables REEE
Reportable segment total ARED AR - 130
Unallocated head office and RAOMBE R
corporate total N AR - 252
Consolidated total RE 18R - 382
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers;
and (i) the Group's property, plant and equipment,
investment property, prepaid lease payments,
intangible assets, goodwill, deposit for acquisition
of equity interests in a company, deposits for hire of
funeral parlours and funeral services centres and other

NFE+TZA=+—RHILFE

4. ERVRSBEH ()

(b)

/-\_L *’I’ (IIE)
fﬂEﬁ#

TR TERROARERBINER
Wt R(NAREBZ Y J*}%&
HE WEWE AENEERR

BEE BE BREBER—F
DAl EmEE  HRBEER
BEREHPLZRENEMEE
BEZERERDIT - BEP 2

iR SRR H R R AR E
LI Y B LA WA
WE - -BNHEEFER  AREER
—HARZER RS HRAEE
fERBERGH L Z2IRE MEAM
HEZS ZMAEMRIAEBEE

rental deposit. The geographical location of customers
refers to the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
locations of property, plant and equipment, investment
property, prepaid lease payments, deposit for
acquisition of equity interests in a company, deposits

for hire of funeral parlours and funeral services centres FTREB L E A ﬁ?’rﬁﬂfﬁ
and other rental deposit are based on the physical E HERHEAMIES  AILES

Ei%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%Z%ﬁ%ﬁﬁEi@ﬁ%
*o

location of the assets under consideration. In the
case of intangible assets, goodwill and other deposit,
it is based on the location of the operation to these
intangible assets are allocated.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

RENARERKR EFBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —nfF —E-RE —nfF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT AR®TT AREFTL
The PRC (place of domicile) A7 B0 (5Ef b 25 ) 53,195 57,789 15,452 16,516
Taiwan =0 2,890 2,318 36,274 41,495
Hong Kong aE 74 749 86 173
Vietnam figea] 516 777 879 1,216
4,147 3,844 37,239 42,884
57,342 61,633 52,691 59,400
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & —ZFT—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EXHERSBEHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)
Revenue from major products and services FTEEmRRRE Nz
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TRT AREF T
Funeral services and cremation REBBEBE ZBEER
services provided in funeral BERBEPOREZ
parlours and funeral service BERB MRS
centres under the Group’s
management 52,386 57,789
Funeral arrangement services BELHERE 2,643 3,067
Funeral related consultancy BEEEB AR

services 892 -

Sale of burial plots & 425 736
Sale of tombstones HERE 90 40
Cemetery maintenance services — EE{E & R 1 1
Elderly care services HEE R 905 -

57,342 61,633
Information about major customers FTEEFEH

HE_Z—REFN_Z—FF
T A=1+—HIEFE #BERE
FEE—IINTEE 2R HAE
BUzE10%3 A | o

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

5.

OTHER INCOME 5. HfttlxA
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARKETF T
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T7F 72 FI B U A 914 1,764
Total interest income on financial W3 A FEFT AEn
assets not at fair value ZEREBEZNE
through profit or loss WA #E 58 914 1,764
Sundry income FETFUA 210 116
Rental income from investment & MEZHE KA
property 225 295
Sub-leasing rental income ERES KA - 11
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWE BEM&ME
property, plant and equipment Z Wz (&) 3 (1,400)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BEEgRZ iR
of land and buildings held for BFzEHEHBS
own use (4t) 338 )
Net exchange gain b H s 3 5 3,476 2,337
Net gain on terminated and AR IE R TRER
lapsed funeral services deeds BRI 55 17 395
Net realised and unrealised gain/  §7& A A FEFAE
(loss) on financial assets B BEEZ
designated as at fair value [RE-SENE -5
through profit or loss Wa/ (E18) FiE 1,577 (277)
6,760 3,239
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BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —Z —

NFETZA=1T—BHLHFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. FRIRABIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) BREEATESIE D0k (R A) T 518
the followings: ERES- o
2016 2015
—E—REFE —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
(a) Finance costs (a) RUTERE
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 184 264
Total interest expenses on W FELA R FEEA
financial liabilities not at BEasemBaE
fair value through profit or loss Rt 184 264
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BIRZ (BIFEEE
emoluments) i)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He IE&K
H 48 7 18,509 17,718
Contributions to defined TE BB RURIKET &
contribution retirement plans R 2,256 2,188
20,765 19,906
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6.

1 7

BRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZFT—XF+-A=+—HIFE
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. FEMBIEE (&)
2016 2015
— N —hHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
() Otheritems HtmH
Amortisation of intangible assets A ERE 505 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease AT E RIBEE
payments 82 82
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN 2 857 813
Cost of inventories (note (i) FEKA (BEEG)) 16,687 8,421
Gross rental income from wEYERES A
investment property less direct BMEBREERX
outgoing of RMB nil (2015: RMB AREZT
nil) (ZZ—Hh%F:
AREETT) 225 295
Depreciation e 4,717 5,278
Operating lease charges for W BEKZE
property, plant and equipment: REFHES W
minimum lease payments RIEMAEHREE
— rented premises — A 350 785
Less: sub-leasing rental income o EEES
WA - (11)
350 774
— hire of equipment —HA%E 21 187
— hire of funeral parlours and -~ HABREER
funeral service centres BERBH O 7,938 10,586
Operating lease charges: EEES
contingent rents HAREE
— hire of funeral parlours and —HABEEER
funeral service centres BRSO 550 576
Impairment loss on other H A JE W R
receivables BEEE - 382
Impairment loss on property, Yz BERRE 2
plant and equipment VEREN Ei! - 1,045
Impairment loss on goodwill EREEE 15,129 -
Impairment loss on prepayments AR RIEREEE 5,052 -
Prepayments written off I 58 T8 A R IE
(note (ii)) (Bt Eii ) 4,265 760
Provision for future costs of RIEEERERL
delivering funeral services under REHBEERS 2
funeral service deeds R IR AN B 1,107 1,558
Note (j): BtaEa) -
Included in the cost of inventories there is a write-down T & K 7R R B 3 SR B B % A ST B

of development and formation costs and inventories of
RMB7,886,000 (2015: Nil) and RMB1,129,000 (2015: Nil),

respectively.

Note (ii):

During the year ended 31 December 2016, prepaid
commission to agents of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB4,265,000 (2015: RMB760,000) were
written off because the agents went into bankruptcy and
accordingly the Group can no longer enjoy the agency

services nor have the refund from the agents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= —

ET-RFTA=+—HILFE

FERaRZMEN

2016 2015
—Z—RE —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Current tax: BIEAT 1A :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A B 1 B TS A
(note (c)) (F5E())
Current period N ERfE 1,727 2,409
Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax BEDEMETH
(note (d)) (MIEE))
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR - 173
Total st 1,727 2,582
Notes: Btaz -

(@  No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for both years.

(b)  The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") for both years.

(©)  The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to Enterprise
Income Tax rate at 25% (2015: 25%) in accordance with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprises Income
Tax (RZE AR IR B FTEHE) except that Chongging
Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited (“Chongqging
Xizhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% (2015:
15%) in accordance with P KFHECEMEHER,
which is retrospectively applied to Chongging Xizhou from
January 2011 and, provided that the conditions precedent to
entitlement of preferential tax rate are fulfilled by Chongging
Xizhou in each of subsequent years, the preferential tax rate
can be applied to Chongqging Xizhou up to December 2020.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, Chongging Xizhou is
subject to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2015: 15%).

(d) Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”),
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De"”) and BLL, both of which are indirect
subsidiaries of the Company, are subject to Taiwan Enterprise
Income Tax at 17% (2015: 17%) on taxable profits
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act and other
relevant laws in Taiwan.

(e)  Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are subject
to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2015: 20%) on
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision for Vietnam
Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao Son Life and
HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for both years.

ERAKERREFEREEETEE
EEMERBUAN ML |IEREE
TISHi -

RE BN MIEFEZ BRGNS
5 BEEDNABELEE ([HEBE
LEB]) AER R 2 EAIBE

AR B 2 M B AR ZARIEREA
REMBIMEMBRER2SE% (ZF
—FRF 125% ) 2R EEREMT
WARRBZEEEENBRRIEED
BABEREERAR([EEHRE])
AR PSSR XA RERR
15% (ZF—HF:15%) 2 BEHK
RNH - MEESERRPERE D
BERERE_ZT——F—H MHE
EHRARNERESFEENZHERH
RZ RGN BIEES A —EJE
AEERRE-_Z-_FTHF+_H-R
HE-_Z—RFt+-_A=t+—BI*#E
£ EEHEBILI5% (ZT—RF:
15% ) 2 (TSR R R 4NFL o

RN EE M BN RE L AR
ARRR ([EIL]) RARTMREM
EMBAREEETEERNERRD
A ([Ei2]) R T EMARE A EMS
BE R E A ERAR  RERTUE T
B17% (ZF—HF :17% ) e 2
LEMSH -

AARzEEFZEMBLRE L
wEEARAR ([BILEm]) R
Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation
(THLV Duc Hoa |) At 1R 1% #i B9 1E
TER MR EE T < EART 4 M 1220%
(ZZ—RF:20%) LR EBMBRE
PSR » BN E LA a7 K HLY Duc
Hoay i {84 [ 15 8 & SR A A1) - SOk
B D PTISE R

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.

s

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at

applicable tax rates:

NE+-A=+—HIFE

FRERRRZAEN (])

Hret: ()

RERAREFE BRI RE
BE :

SHERZE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Loss before taxation bRELRIEE (32,899) (7,183)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, LEBAT B EER
calculated at the rates applicable to A B R BEBR A AT
loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned BB E B miiIE (5,923) (1,225)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses IR
W‘k 2 4,164 6,670
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBIRAZ
Mg E (3.828) (4,382)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIBEE 2
MiBT & 10,865 681
Tax effect of utilisation of unused FABTFERER
tax not recognised in prior years REAHIEZ
Mg E (770) -
Tax effect on temporary difference RERGREE
not recognised M (2,800) -
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFEBRETR/
(FRERE ) = 173
Others H A, 19 665
Actual tax expense ERBIERY 1,727 2,582
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BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

8. EEHM

REEE (R RG] E383(NIEK
(RA] (HEEZNmER) RO $2
MRERTHREZESTHFMOT

2016
ZZ-RE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EEna Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BFET
e FERERN B g L #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
UN: & AE®TR AEBTR AEBTR UN: &
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai el 1,029 4,120 24 - 5,173
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEEEAE 203 55 12 - 270
Independent non-executive directors BV HHITEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai EREE4E 60 - - - 60
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FEAKE 60 - - - 60
1412 4,175 36 - 5,623
2015
—E-1%
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EENA Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
RIKEF
e He kg WA TR EE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF AREFT AREFTT ARETR AREFL
Executive directors HTESR
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BN e 975 2,902 40 - 3,917
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBLAE 195 113 12 - 320
Independent non-executive directors B EHITEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERExAE 57 - - - 57
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-®EE 57 - - - 57
Mr. Lee Koon Hung B3NSt 57 - - - 57
1,341 3,015 52 - 4,408
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
8.

1 7

BRIt
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for both years.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the director held share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The
details of the share options are disclosed in note 39.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2015: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three) individuals
are as follows:

NFE+TZA=+—RHILFE
8.

EEHM ()

RWREFE  NARBEE EWETMA
R AEEBERTAES T
FER ZBNIE R INA R INA R R B 2
BER) SR BERAR(E -

RZE—ARNFR_ZE—HF+=A
=+ —H EERBAQTERETS
B T W RS AR A - BB AR M 2 FHIB AT 5239
B -

REWmAL
REBRBEHALRERE (CE— 5

FRB)RNRRIES  HEHMAMWES
FRE-HEBp =R (ZE—RHF: =&)&%
SHATZEMRTENT

2016 2015
—NE —RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TX AREEFIT
Salaries, allowances and e R REMER
other benefits 1,329 1,192
Discretionary bonuses FIEIEAT 62 99
Contributions to retirement RREFIFIEIH R
benefit scheme 27 21
1,418 1,312
The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with —FZ(ZE—RF  ZR)EaHALZ
the highest emoluments are within the following band: T T EE
2016 2015
ZE—REF —HhF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T (FHE R
(equivalent to RMB857,400 AR #857,4007T
(2015: RMB812,600)) —FRF:
AER#812,6007T) ) 3 3

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016



10.

1.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —Z —

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 09.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2015: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive loss for both years.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB31,520,000 (2015: RMB9,402,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2015: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 as the impact of the
share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented. Therefore, the
calculation of the diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB31,520,000 (2015: RMB9,402,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2015: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

10.

1.

BT R P vt

NE+-A=+—HILFE
EEmm AL ()

RREFEAR NEEHERTA =%
T-RF: ZR)BERFALIAX

/,\r‘MBZﬁSEH FHERIMAZIR AR

KB 2 2R HFRRERERE

Ht2@mIKA~ (BiR)

RREFEAR &0 EREMEE
EBREZBREE -

BERER

(a) BREXEIR
EREAEBEDNRERNARES
A FE(E B 18 A R #531,520,0007T
ZE—RHF: AR¥9,402,000
TL) RFEARND BT EBRNET Y
#(742,500,0000% (:x—ﬂi :

742,500,0000% & @A% ) &
(b) BREEEE
BE-_ZT—RXFE-_ZFT—AF

T A=Z=+—HIEFE 27
ZBREABESELEIELH
B2 EHABEREZZEHMZS
2EREABEEcEAREE
MpE- AL FREEEEDR
BARRRHE ABLEEARE
31,520,000 (ZE—HF: AR
#9,402,00070) M F N E BH1TE
B % hn#E 19 £742,500,000%
(ZZ—FH % :742,500,0000% &
AR ETE -

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB
Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group’s PRC and Vietnam
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to scheme
based on certain percentage of the relevant portion of the
payroll of all qualifying employees in accordance with the
relevant regulations in the PRC and Vietnam respectively. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered and
operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan for
employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme, the
employers are required to make contributions to the scheme
at 6% of the employees’ relevant income. Contributions to
the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees'’
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the retirement benefit
schemes beyond the contribution described above.
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BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & T —"F+-A=+—HIFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE -BERER

(a) (a)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value ~ improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
ERAFEE
4 R RER
THREF HERE LN RE ERIE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT
Cost or valuation BFHMHE
At 1 January 2015 R=E-R§-A-H 23,227 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094
Effect of foreign currency NEERERZTE
exchange differences 305 2 8 63 4 482
Additions RE - 95 619 - 4
Construction expenditure capitalised ~ B{FE A7 Ti2HY - - - - 2,773 2,773
Transfers 3 - 732 14 - (746) -
Disposals HE - @1 (4,105) (447) - (4,573)
Deficit on revaluation sHEL (621) - - - - (621)
Less: Elimination of accumulated W RETEHE
depreciation (179 - - - - (179)
At 31 December 2015 —E-RETf=1-R 273 10532 10961 5,400 2,065 51,690
Representing: B
Cost KA - 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 28,958
Valuation - 2015 “E-NERE 273 - - - - 2,732
22,732 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 51,690
At 1 January 2016 22,732 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 51,690
Effect of foreign currency a8
exchange differences 1,877 169 162 115 49 2372
Additions RE - 1,027 389 - - 1416
Acquisition through business BBEB ARG (Hita0)
combination (Note 40) 1,468 - 196 - 323 1,987
Construction expenditure capitalised BIEERZIRAX - - - - 3,580 3,580
Transfers B8R - 2,840 591 - (3431) -
Disposals e - (1) - (48) - (59)
Surplus on revaluation BhEH 491 - - - - 491
Less: Elimination of accumulated W BHTESH
depreciation (191) - - - - (191)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+-ZA=1t-8H 26377 14,557 12,299 5,467 2,586 61,286
Representing: Bp:
Cost A 14,557 12,299 5,467 2,586 34,909
Valuation - 2016 ZEERE 26377 26,377
26,377 14,557 12,299 5,467 2,586 61,286
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the

(Continued)
(Continued) (@ (&)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#ERR
ERAFE
il -4 R RER
THEETF BERE  WOERG RE ERTE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  AR%T:
Accumulated depreciation and RHFERFEESR
impairment loss
At 1 January 2015 R=Z2-1%-A-AH - 5793 6,182 2,854 - 14,829
Effect of foreign currency NEERZERHE
exchange differences - 14 56 4 - 112
Charge for the year ERT M 179 1390 2,840 869 - 5,278
Impairment loss REEE - 804 241 - - 1,045
Elimination on disposals HERLE - (1) 2,752) (383) - (3,146)
Elimination on revaluation o (179) - - - - (179
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFFZA=+-8 - 7,990 6,567 3,382 - 17,939
At 1 January 2016 W=E-~4%-A—-H - 7,990 6,567 3,382 - 17,939
Effect of foreign currency NEERZREZYE
exchange differences 7 9 106 75 - 287
Charge for the year FRYH 184 1,739 2,056 738 - 477
Impairment loss HEER - - - - - -
Elimination on disposals HERHH - (1) - (47) - (58)
Elimination on revaluation Edrgiaage] (191) - - - - (191)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A~E+-A=1+-B - 9,817 8729 4,148 - 22,694
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2016 WZE-RFTZA=+-8 26,377 4,740 3570 1,319 2,586 38,592
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=+-R 22,732 2,542 4,394 2,018 2,065 33,751
(b) Had the revalued land and buildings held for own use by MIBEERZKEHLHREF

TIARRASR R &SR - BREE

carrying amounts would have been: (NS
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETF T
Land and buildings T MET 22,027 18,981
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

+ A
B 75 =< I 5t
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

(0 MEZLFEE

(i)

RFEER

TREINBERRIZERE
MRS ENREEYEN
RVE FRAEBMBR
HFEANE1IR A FEFETE
EN=MAFEEMR - RF
BEFfFERENERE2ER
B Rl {2 A By 8 A (B0 AT
BRUELRERMEENT

e E—EfiE:RNUE
—EmAEFERT
B BEREEXARE
R EREERTS
MR T B R E

o FEHEUEZE
HABE(MIEEZ
TR ERGAE)GTE
AYE BEGABZ
AR A INE —
[EEPNIERRNGIE- =3
MNE &I &5 EBE
AE2E 28 AE

. ESEE: AEEH
TA BB B
ATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 A2 —ZE—RF+T_HA=+—HIEFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFETZ (E)
(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RFEERE)
Fair value at
31 December
2016 Fair value measurements
RIE-RE as at 31 December 2016 categorised into
+=8 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=+-H RZZ-RE+ZAZ+-HZ
ZOFE AFEHERES
B | ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  AR®TR  AR%®TR
Recurring fair value EENLTEME
measurement
Freehold land and buildings KARELH
- Taiwan RkgF-5%& 24,217 - - 24,211
Buildings - The PRC EF-HE 2,100 - - 2,100
26,377 - - 26,377
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B Fs = MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BEREE (&)
(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZALAFEFTZ (E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () RFEERE)
Fair value at Fair value measurements
31 December as at 31 December 2015 categorised into
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZ-hF
T-A=1-8 RZE-RF+=A=1+-AZ
ZATE AIEHEREA
F-FE £ E £=FE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  AREBTT  ARETRT  ARMTR

Recurring fair value measurement S HHEATFEE

Freehold land and buildings KAEELH
- Taiwan kEgF-5E 20,931 - - 20,931
Buildings - The PRC BF-4 1,801 - - 1,801
22,732 - - 22,732
During the year ended 31 December 2016 and RBE_Z-—XRFER=F
2015, there were no transfers between Level —RF+-_A=+—HIF
1 and Level 2, and Level 3. The Group's policy E 2B FZERE=
is to recognise transfers into/out of fair value [B 2 Ml fmadk e REE 2
hierarchy levels as of the date of event or change BUR AR EHHES S B
in circumstances that caused the transfer. REEZBERLESEE
ERAFEERHEAKE
$ o

All of the Group's freehold land and buildings RZE—RE+TZA=1—
held for own use were revalued as at 31 H FBEARESERIEERZ
December 2016. The valuations were carried KAFKETHREFHESE
out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting - RBE_ZT—RFRZ
Limited, for the years ended 31 December E-RFE+_A=+—HIit
2016 and 2015, an independent firm of FE - HERY LM EED
chartered surveyors with recent experience in EFTEH R YRR A
the location and category of properties being (EXER v s i =k
valued. The Group's directors have discussed REEMLBEREBR AR
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions T ESEPBHRFERS
and valuation results when the valuation are AEETHER  RNEEE
performed at each interim and annual reporting EE S REERS

date. MEEER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(1)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

14. % -BEREM (&)

(0 ¥MxZLVEE (&)

(i) BHEE=FLFHEIEZE
#

Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range Range
fEER* AUHEEBAE #E #E
2016 2015
—Z-RE —Z-1%
Freehold land and buildings - Taiwan  Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (20%) t0 20%  (20%) to 15%
KAEBDH BT -5E BEERE SR e (20%)220%  (20%)E15%

Buildings — The PRC
BF-E

Direct comparison approach

BRLBE

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined
using direct comparison approach by reference
to the market price of comparable properties
and adjusted for building quality, location of
the properties and timing of the reference
transactions.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

(5%) to 10%
(5%) £10%

(5)% to 8%
(5%)%8%

Property-specific adjusting rate

NEETAEE

N8 b B A2
%2 ATEDEREEILR
R B8 AHLEN
$2HE BHEEZSY
BFHE MEH R
etk 3% -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value

14. % -BEREM (&)

(0 MEZLVEE(FE)

(i) BEE=ELFESEZE

measurements (Continued) #(4E)
The movements during the period in R L E=ZEAFER
the balances of these Level 3 fair value EEKREHOT:
measurements are as follows:
Freehold
land and
buildings Buildings
- Taiwan - The PRC Total
kAR
TitREF #B¥
-Ri# —-HE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT  ARETT  ARET:X
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RF—HA—8 21,386 1,841 23,227
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AEEHEFHL (141) (38) (179)
Effect of foreign currency INEEREZENTE
exchange differences 305 - 305
Deficit on revaluation EREA
— recognised in other -REMZABERR
comprehensive loss, SADESEEE]
included in “properties
revaluation reserve” (619) - (619)
— recognised in profit or loss, -RERBER A
included in “other income” [E e - ) )
At 31 December 2015 R_ZT—HF
+-A=+—H 20,931 1,801 22,732
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—"E—H—H 20,931 1,801 22,732
Acquisition through business BBEBAONE
combination 1,468 - 1,468
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AFETERH X (145) (39) (184)
Effect of foreign currency exchange SMNETE H ZEmFE
differences 1,870 - 1,870
Surplus on revaluation B A%
~ recognised in other -REMZERERER
comprehensive income included AR E ]
in “properties revaluation
revenue” 153 - 153
— recognised in profit or loss - REEER
included in “other income” - 338 338
At 31 December 2016 Ny
+-A=+—H 24,277 2,100 26,377

Effect of foreign currency exchange differences
of properties held for own use are recognised in
other comprehensive loss in “foreign currency
translation reserve”.

FHEERZMRZINEIER,
ERZEENELHE]
TZzHEMEHEERRER

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZE—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) The carrying amount of freehold land and
buildings pledged as security for the Group's
bank borrowings were RMB18,472,000 (2015:
RMB17,034,000) (note 27) as at 31 December 2016.

(e) Impairment loss

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company conducted a review of
the Group's property, plant and equipment and
determined that certain of the Group's leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and office equipment
are specially identified to be impaired because the
segments for which these assets are used, mainly the
Funeral Service — Taiwan and Funeral Service — Hong
Kong, sustained continuing loss and in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, these items of leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and office equipment
have no or little commercial value. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of RMB1,045,000 in respect of these
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and office
equipment have been recognised during the year.

(f)  During the year, the Group's freehold land amounting

to RMB1,575,340 (2015: RMB nil) was under trust
arrangements.
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(d) RAZ=—RF+ZA=+—8"12

(e)

()

EHIEAAEERITEEERS
TOKAEEL M N FNEREEE
A ARE18,472,0000T (—F—
F: AR#17,034,0007T) (HIzE
27) °

AEEE
HEZTZ—AHF+=A=+—H
IFFEE  ARRESHEAEE Y
¥ BELEEETER WET
REBEETHEMERE R
HENPHAEREERIETE AR
B RAAFEAZEEENDE
(FEREERE -8 ERBEER
B—BB)FEREEE MARQ
REERE ZEHEmERE
R CEBERHAZTZHEERE I
EoEE ) EFEEE B ®
FAERREEZSHEDEE
& RFEE R AZREEORE
EEAAREZT (ZE—AF:
1,045,0007T ) °

RAFE AEBERBELLHE
BBEZXAEELHABARE
1,575,340 (ZE2E—HF: AR
WEIT) °



16.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. MftHEE &

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREF T

At 1 January wn—H—H 3,671 3,753

Amortisation charge for the year RNEFHIHER (82) (82)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 3,589 3,671

Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 B IO A

Current assets MBEE 82 82
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,507 3,589
3,589 3,671

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
"administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

AEFEEERARGEBARTANT
BRI e

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. EME
2016 2015
—E-R¥F —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT
At fair value BAFE
At 1 January n—H—H 4,438 4,375
Effect of foreign currency exchange YMNESTE = E K
differences, included in FE (T ATIE L)
“foreign currency translation
reserve” 374 63
At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—8H 4,812 4,438

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ N

B % ac st

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE —Z—XF+ A
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment property

0

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy
The investment property is measured at Level 3
valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were
no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The Group's investment property was revalued as
at 31 December 2016. The valuations for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's directors have discussed with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

=t+—HBILFE

16. WM (M)

BREWMEZ A NFEE
(i) X FlEER
WEYERE=EHEFTE-

REE-—T—AE+-_A=+—
[ 2 Fo A o 4t o

REBIREMER_ZT—RF
T A=+ —HETEG -REE
—E-XNER-_ZT—HF+=A
=+—BIEFE  HERBLSR
BlEREAEETHBEEERA
RIETT A8 A EYEMTEI
MY sEERan BHELRS £%
ErRHA R FEsRE BT A A
B AREESEEC ST T
BEBRIZRGELER-

(i) BEE=ER-FETEZEH

Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
fERE AARRBAE il
2016 2015
ZB-R"EF ZB-1%f
Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate (20%) to 20% (15%) to 4%
KAFELH-BE BRHEBE MEFEREER (20%)Z20% (15%)%4%

The fair value of investment property located in Taiwan
is determined using direct comparison approach by
reference to the market price of comparable properties
and adjusted for location and land size of the
properties.

(iii) During the year, the Group’s investment property

amounting to RMB4,812,000 (2015: RMB4,438,000)
was held under trust arrangements.
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REEBZREMEZ N FEIME
REERLEEETE 22Z
BEMEZTE XYW EZAE
Kt mEiE L -

(i) RNFER RNEBIREBETLR
HRFBCREMERARE
4,812,000 (=T —HF:
ANE#4,438,0007T ) °



17.

18.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE —Z —

NFETZA=1T—BHLHFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BLRE
Computer
Trademark system Total
[} ElERH% et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFTT
Cost %3
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HF—H—H 19 - 19
Effect of foreign currency INEIE R E R B
exchange differences - - -
At 31 December 2015 and AZE—RAF+ZA=T—H
1 January 2016 RZZ—RE—A—H 19 - 19
Additions NE - 1,698 1,698
Effect of foreign currency INEIE R ERR B
exchange differences - 52 52
At 31 December 2016 RZF-—R"F+-_A=+—H 19 1,750 1,769
Accumulated amortisation Retsy
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—A—H 17 - 17
Charge for the year REFEH - - -
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-—RAF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 k=ZF-—XE—H—H 17 - 17
Charge for the year REZHH - 505 505
Effect of foreign currency GNEER ZR 2 E
exchange differences - 10 10
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+-A=+—H 17 515 532
Carrying value IREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-A=+—H 2 1,235 1,237
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+ZA=1T—H 2 - 2

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost of
sales” in the consolidated statment of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

REZEHBENES
A TSHERA] o

Bas R MG

18. HESBRLATFEHHARNRZ

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MEEE
2016 2015
—NE —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, EEEs BHrETEZ
at fair value NFE
Established in Taiwan (note (i)) NEeEs s (BEsEd)) 38,640 34,777

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 1%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

i MRt

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

0

According to the Mortuary Service Administration
Act (BZE M) in Taiwan, which was first
promulgated on 17 July 2002 and further amended
on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has to
deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral
services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds
and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed
by fund managers of these financial institutions in
Taiwan. The mutual funds and unit trusts comprise a
basket of financial assets including local and foreign
currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity securities
listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are presented
within “operating activities” as part of changes in
working capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. The Group has obtained a net realised and
unrealised gain of RMB1,577,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: loss of RMB277,000).
The net realised and unrealised gain of the above
financial assets are recorded in “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They
have no fixed maturity and coupon rate.
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NFETZA=+—RHILFE

18. ?ﬁi&g’&qzﬁ#lﬁﬁz

MER

(#&)

BER-_ZEZ-_FtA+EHE
REHBINR T =F+H—H
RZETLFLAMBE—HE
Rl BBRBETIRIE ZF?'E./A
ANEETREEBETRN 2T
FHHA=ZT—HREILZFIEAR

BIRTE R L WA LER ZT5%1E R
EEE-

EAEEERENGENEBRES
LEMEABEBEE REAEZ
FRETRMBBZESRKESR
B BBREGREMEMH—&T
M EEAN BRI EINEE
BRI BB REAMINERX
mEMmZEFREARES -

BEABRAFEFABRE ZGHE
ﬁ%%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁi%%“%
HIR2HN EREEESE
_ﬁB ﬁifé /\E"?’ )EJ
—t+—HIEFE TEEESAR
ﬁwswommza“ﬁﬁx“
B (CE-AFE  BEARE
waﬁ>tLWﬁ§Fma
A%

i%ﬁ’] (Ei\ﬁﬂ%z 5] 7§IJEEO

ERB AR AL EEREER
ATEMESERE R HE - 25
MBEELmETHNARET
Rl



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

19. GOODWILL 19. &
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Cost: Pk 7S
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) YBg —FE K E A A (MIsE40) 16,731 -
Effect of foreign currency exchange HMNESTEH =8~ 522
difference 1,320 -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 18,051 -
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFTREEE
At 1 January ®R—H—H - -
Impairment loss FIEEE 15,129 -
Effect of foreign currency exchange 4HMNEETE N =& 2 £
difference 101 -
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 15,230 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ ZA=+—HZEHEE 2,821 -
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As refer to note 40, the Group obtained control of BLL
through the acquisition of 100% equity voting interest in
BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly care and related
services. The primary reason for the business combination is
to enable the Group to develop the business for the golden-
ager and further penetrate the elderly care market through
(a) provision of nursery services to the elderly and (b)
consultancy services to other service providers in the elderly
care market by means of:

() establishment and/or hire of day-care centres; and
(i) establishment and/or hire of elderly homes; and

(i)  provision of on-site nursery service at elderly’s
premises.

According to the plan, a day-care centre was completed
and started operation in June 2016. However, the Group
only generated consulting services income of approximately
RMB905,000 during the year ended 31 December 2016,
and which is far beyond the Group’s expectation. On the
other hand, the Group has started the negotiation with
various owners of elderly home and day-care centres.
However, the negotiation was still in progress and the
Group foresees that longer time is required to conclude the
negotiation and to enter into the service contracts, and such
timing is still uncertain.

Due to the unexpectedly low income generated from
day-care centre and delay in the time required for the
establishment and/or hire of elderly home, the management
revised the business plan and forecast which led to the
impairment.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. &8 (48)

AN FEA0FT AL - AN SR B B UK BB BT
B RHEE RO N EMRZ EHIHE -
ETEREBAMHNETREHITAB(@)
AEEREEERSE K O)REETSE
b AR IR B RN A ARG E A R ER
BIREREL UWIEB T 3 —
TEAZBZEHMS

() FRRSHERBMEERFRL R
(i) HRIRk/HHEBAEER: &

(i) MEEZERSREESRS-

BRI FAEHE REBER =T —RF
NABEKIHR I BARERED L
HE_Z—XR"Et+_A=+—HILFE
EE315 4 AR EE905,000T 2 WA =K
REH - ZS—FTH AKEE=-F—X
F+ AREHENRAZ RN E B EEF
DHEEERRER - AMB N aN o #
MR B AARGEER BN DERER
FEER - NEEETEET  STEAEER KT AR
BENFERER-

B HREEESOEERAKRE
B-REIR/SEATERFTRIL
£ BEECEFEERE 8 NTE
Al o



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU") as follows:

19.

(&)

BEBEZREELEENNRER
=
HEZEAESEAREATREES

N

BN

2016 2015

—E—-RE TR

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®BTR ARETF T

Provision of elderly care services REHEEZRTE 2,821 -

The key assumptions, long-term growth rate and discount

AHERMHFERIRG 2 X EREER

rate used in the value-in-use calculations for the business of AZzFE/RE REERERAAEN
providing consultancy services are as follows: ™~

2016

ZE—REFE

— Gross margin RS from 47% to 63%

47%%E63%

- Long term growth rate —RHERX 3%

— Pre-tax discount rate —BRF AT AL IR =X 17.8%

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and the
expected market development. The long term growth rates
used are consistent with the industry growth rates. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the business.

At 31 December 2016, the recoverable amount of the CGU

AREEDE FTREENXNEEMK
Rz EEREBEREFEN—FAMER
B FIGERME - RFERME MR ETT K
FEHI TS B R T A PTIRTT - FTERA
EHERRETRERR -5 MK
FIREIR R R FNRR IR - 3 R BR A B 7%
FY 5 E LR

RZB—RF+_A=1t—H RIE
HABZAIREISRRIAT

was as follows.
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Recoverable amount AT B4 58 6,991

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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The recoverable amount of the elderly care services business
CGU was based on its value in use and was determined
with the assistance of APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer not
connected with the Group. Both the management and
the valuer observe and refer to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets when estimating the value in use of the CGU
involves estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to
be derived from continuing use of the CGU in its current
condition and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. Accordingly, the management and
the valuer consider the future cash flows from the provision
of consultancy services to other service providers only for the
purpose of impairment assessment.

The value-in-use calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in which
the CGU operates.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB15,129,000 (2015:
RMB nil) for the goodwill allocated to the segment of elderly
care services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 1R R M T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —-F—
19. GOODWILL (Continued)

NFETZA=+—RHILFE
19.

B (|)

*%%%%%ﬁ%?EEﬁZTW@%
BEIRBHEGERAEENE WHEERE
lﬁ%@Zﬁi%%éﬁ%%@%ﬁt
BEMERERARARGE TEE -
EIRE AL EtREA T IR @ EEBAH
EREERDERR2EEEGT LR
FIREERE ET P REFESE
HEBAA R E(E B ATE £ AR K
Heh AR TEYHZERKEAES
RERAEENMRE - BRIt BREE
R AfET R FORE R 4 2 £ 8 A B fth &
ZERBIRHEERMFEARBELE ZR
KIBE M °

ZEEREEAEEEAEREERE
R E R FHRNM S RE T AR
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂlhﬁﬂi%%mﬁéﬁé

Ty N XTSI TG R R HER - 4
%$ﬁﬂﬁ@§$$ﬁ%méiﬁ%¥
BRMERR-

HE-ZT—A"F+A=1+T—HILHF
B AEERSMEEERG D IR
BpER ARE15,129,0000 (—E—H
FAREZ ) REBERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE
20. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS

20. FASE R R ILRL &

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREF T
Development and formation costs ~ Fd3 K ik 37 ik A
— burial plots under —DAEHE 2 R EM
development for sale 7,406 14,333

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for burial plots construction in a
cemetery site which will be completed for sale by burial plot
and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The write down of development and formation costs
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted to
RMB7,886,000 (2015: RMB Nil), as the costs of the burial
plots under development for sale were higher than their net
realizable value.

FA 3% MBS PR AR A Y — R B B P ST
&2 & 2 B WK AR
AERFEME P ZREEIIK-

ERAEAXTEEEREBERHE
AN ] A2 i SE B B MR LA B AR
#7.886,0007C (—E—RF: ARKE
L) EAHBFEERZANAEERE
A] B35 F(E -

INVENTORIES 21. &
2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBEF T
Merchandises for resale EEER 466 589
Completed burial plots ST L EH 984 2,030
Marble stones KIEA 76 73
1,526 2,692

The carrying amount of inventories sold and write down of
inventories (mainly the complete burial plots) recognized
as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted to
RMB7,672,000 (2015: RMB8,421,000) and RMB1,129,000
(2015: RMB Nil) respectively. The write down of inventories
is due to the costs of the completed burial plots were higher
than their net realisable value.

HREMIVBEEEHGREERE[H
ERA] ACEEFRERTFEME (X
ZRAEXRIEM)EEAES I AAR
7,672,000 (ZE—RHF: AR
8,421,0007T ) & AR #1,129,0007T (=
T—RHF: ARETT) - MEFETE
ARETIE2M KA mR A #R
SFE -

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. B RHEAMMEHRIT

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—FHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AERETIT
Trade receivables (note (c) and (g)) & ZEUWFIE (M7 & (9)) 250 374
Other receivables (note (d)) H b e R IE (BI5Ed)) 4,588 2,908
Less: allowance for B EEEEE (MIREeE))
impairment loss (note (e)) (291) (1,009)
4,297 1,899
Loans and receivables B ERGRIE 4,547 2,273
Deposits and prepayments (note (f)) &% K T8 78 (ML) 50,839 59,015
Deposit for acquisition of equity Wi —BArRAER ZRE
interests in a company - 15,920
55,386 77,208
Representing: =k
Current BHA 53,664 59,588
Non-current JEENEA 1,722 17,620
55,386 77,208
Note: Hiat:

(@  All of the loans and receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year and prepayments are expected to be
recognised as expense within one year or in its normal

operating cycle.

(b)  The carrying amounts of loans and receivables approximate

to their fair values.

(0 No allowance for doubtful debts was recorded for both years.
Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age

(@) MEERRERFIRESMRN —F Rk
Bl - R ORI R — F AN IE

FEERNERARFN

() ERRERFIAZEEE

EE=N

HEHENFE

(@ MPMEFEHESFSREREE-UAT
ANBEHRE S REFRRERR

presented based on the invoice date as at the end of the HZ25| 2 R DT
reporting period:

2016 2015
—E-R¥F ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR AR¥ETT
0 to 180 days 0£180H 136 92
181 to 365 days 180&365H 10 27
1 year to 2 years 1FE 2246 104 255
250 374

The average credit period for funeral arrangement services
granted to non-funeral services deed customers is 45 days

(2015: 45 days).

For sale of burial plots, the customers can elect to make
payment on a lump sum basis or settle the contract sum by
up to @ maximum of 48 monthly instalments. The instalment
receivables will be discounted at an appropriate effective

interest rate.

There is no credit period granted to customers for the other

service rendered by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H = - %

—RETZA=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B S R HEMEMARIE ()
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

Management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note
33(a).

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as it relates to a wide range of debtors for whom there was
no recent history of default. Management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the non-
impaired balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Impairment loss of other receivables

Impairment loss of other receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment losses

are written off against other receivables directly.

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss

EE

(©

(%)

MR E RN R A AT BB
WEBERRBARZZERIELE
0] 6k, (788 15 o AN = (B 00 S A 5% 55 A R
FAEAERR-

FRREEFERERE— SFER
B FE33() ©

150 18 A Sl BB 2 L At FE M R IR T B
WEAHBRLHE L ZREBAF
W-ERERRBRERAZZRBELS

%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ FRRAREEE XL
BEREY MREEHRDEERA
AEdE -

Hith W OB 2 BB R

H i e R 2 BE R T A REE
BRACAR - MR AR EE M RIRZ A
Wl PR B O BT - R
EBREE & B ARG IAMEE -

S R

2016 2015

—RE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®EF T

At 1 January A—H—H 1,009 1,009
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE 1R - 382
Uncollectible amount written off — #ifi# ~ a] Yz [a] & 58 (718) (382)
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—8 291 1,009
During the year ended 31 December 2016, other receivables REE-_Z—R"F+=-A=1+—H

of the Group amounting to RMB nil (2015: RMB382,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. As at 31
December 2016, the individually impaired receivables were
due from other debtors with financial difficulties. Accordingly,
specific allowances for impairment loss of RMB291,000
(2015: RMB1,009,000) were recognised.

LEFE AEEZEMERFIEAR
BT (ZET— R4 AR#382,000
T ERIEEHERE - R_T— R F
+ZA=+—H8 ERENREZH
fh FEUGRIE Y T E M ISR 2 &7
ARE AL BHERIEERE B #
HBAREE291,000 (ZT—HF A
R #1,009,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #5ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —XF+-A=T—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BES R HMEMRIE ()
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

®

Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits paid
for funeral parlours and funeral services centres, prepaid
hire charge of funeral parlours and funeral services centres,
prepaid agency commission for funeral services deeds and
prepayment for purchase of marble stones of RMB1,700,000
(2015: RMB2,700,000), RMB7,846,000 (2015:
RMB7,738,000), RMB23,669,000 (2015: RMB26,606,000)
and RMB15,707,000 (2015: RMB20,283,000) respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service deeds
amounts were received by the Group. The commission is
fully refundable accordingly to the agency agreements if the
Group are not required to perform the funeral.

Impairment loss on prepayments of RMB5,052,000 (2015:
RMB nil) was made to the prepayment for purchase of marble
stones as the Group considered the recoverable amount of
RMB15,707,000 determined by value in use calculations, is
lower that the cost of the prepayment.

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

Mz (#8)

®

TARS RENRIEAED B AEE
MBRERBRLIN RS BEER
FRERER O ZEMNEBZHAR
EHBREREZBNREBMAS KB
BEEAEAZERAREI700,000
TL(ZZE—RF: AKR¥2,700,000
7o) - ANR#7,846,000C (2 —F
F: ANR#7,738,000T) * AR
23,669,000 (—E—HF: AR
26,606,0007T) & A R #15,707,000
T (ZZF—ARF: AR#20,283,000
JL) °

N5 BB AR T R A9 IR B G R R
XA Ae  WAEEEFREEER
B BRI REARGE SR
o

REEAERAEMNZEREARE
5,052,000t (ZFE—HF: ARKZ
L) RAANEERAREEAE
B8 imEz A REZBAARE
15,707,000 7L 1A FE A FRIBAK AN ©

I SR E 2 FE B 5 IR

I AE Rl sk R FEIR R E R E 2 FEIKRE
SRR ZREBR DT :

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABR®TTT ARBFIT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 42 480 B X R (B 72 174
Past due but not impaired BERE R R

Less than 1 month past due R —1E A 54 28

1 to 3 months past due mE—EAE=[A 4 21

Over 3 months past due wEA R e =8 A 120 151

178 200

250 374

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
various customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R i vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 23. ffHHERSE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARMET T
Bank wealth management product, R{THIEEIEE M -
at cost AR - 1,500

Bank wealth management product was issued by reputable
bank in the PRC and there is no fixed or determinable
returns of this bank wealth management product, but
with a maturity of less than one month. Its principal is
not protected. The investment is stated at cost less any
impairment because the directors are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably. The investment
is neither past due nor impaired.

RUTVEEEERATHARENR
78T MRBERTHMEEEEMLE
ElE sk EEM LR BR—EARE
H-ARERLIFRA-HNEFTRS
BRRE 2 R FETRAIEME &
HIZ AR AEDRES IR - BERE
I 4 380 HY ORI (E

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERBREERY
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITMFHERE 98,550 98,712
Cash and cash equivalents in HEMBRAREEE
the consolidated statement HReERERANZRAER
of financial position and the REEED
consolidated statement of
cash flows 98,550 98,712

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Deposits with banks are made for
varying periods of between 2 days and 181 days depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn
interest at the respective deposit rates.

At 31 December 2016, cash at bank and on hand of the
Group of RMB22,163,000 (2015: RMB22,635,000) were
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

FIRSERBEESRBITERFIR;E
2R E B - BRITFERETALE
MENRF IR F S iR M TF2HE1818
D& WIRE B 17 5 F = BREF 8. o

R-E—RF+-_A=1+—8 AK&EH
ZIRITRFEIRS A AR22,163,000
T(ZZFE—RH%F: ARM22,635,000
L) UAREFETFERA T E IR
1T AR H NS BIRIBEP BIHNEE
BB M AETE - EERMNEEERTEHE
1Te
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

BeRBAEFRY (&)

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24.

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank and on

REBZRITEFHRERE 2REMENT

hand are denominated in the following currencies: P EHEHE -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RAE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETFIT
us$ ETT 295 404
HK$ BT 1,608 541
RMB AR 22,300 28,063
NTD e 74,184 69,474
Euro (“EUR") BT (TEoT]) - 8
VND HMEE 163 222
98,550 98,712
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 BHRHEMEMRIE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T-T0F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Trade payables (note (c)) B 5 EAFIE (M) 1,261 855
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 I B b < 3R0B 7,435 5,108
Financial liabilities measured at BEEKARGTEZ
amortised cost BisasE 8,696 5,963
Notes: Kiat -

(@  All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

approximate to their fair values.

(0 The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

B REMENTRZRHEERER
FEMRE-

AT RRIEHRE 5 R FIRRE
SHHIZIZRE DT

AT RARIERRE 5 BN FIRRE
RHEZREST

2016 2015

ZE-RE —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR¥ETFTT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 740 389
31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 94 196
Over 90 days 90H Mk 427 270
1,261 855

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & —ZFT—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

26. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

26. R HIA

2016 2015
—ZE—REF T—R&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Advance payments from BEFBTIEEZ
customers for: TR IR
— funeral service deeds (note (a)) —BEREEL
(BizE@)) 91,783 87,133
— burial plots under development —AERE R ER
and tombstones (note (b)) (FKt5E®Db)) 2,128 1,709
— deferred maintenance income EERE IRTEULA 118 106
94,029 88,948
Analysed as: Bl
Current BN HA 93,911 88,842
Non-current JEENHA 118 106
94,029 88,948
Notes: Htaz -
a)  Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life a) ARAZHMBAREILRFEE
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services wm(BB)ERAR([PEED (F

deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice of
the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed Holders
can elect to make payment on a lump sum basis or settle
the outstanding amount of the funeral services deeds by
up to a maximum of 120 monthly instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering these
services, after having taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the Deed Holders.
Amounts received from funeral services deeds sold are
recorded as receipts in advance. When the Deed Holders have
defaulted payment for two months and do not pay back the
defaulted amounts after the Group’s not less than 30-day’s
demand notice, the funeral services deeds would be regarded
as lapsed and a minimum of 20% of the total sum of the
funeral services deeds or the instalments paid, whichever
is lower, will be forfeited as income. The Deed Holders can
request for funeral services or terminate the funeral services
deeds at any time after the funeral services deeds are sold.
Accordingly, receipts in advance is classified as current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

BYDARE ([ROBFEANDHER
ERBRY - BEREZNBENE
BERGHEHE T EREAEFPEER
5&%;?}3&%%@52%%}1&%%@%
BAARE-SRTFRBIIRE
Z12008 A DB R E HZE@EE
BROFBE - AEBEEEFEAE
(BRRERHNFEAZERER)® &
B IR B E RS 2 EatA N Ei2
BRI M BERISRN ZE
%o@tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ&%i@%@ﬁﬂ&ﬁxz
FIBATBUGRIE AR - 2 OFE A
E%’Mzﬁ K E A EEA$’§@§"%H
N30 B FGB A E 18 A B
?’@W%ﬂlﬁ RIBERE R H%%Ez?ﬁf’ﬁ
5%&“51'ﬁﬂ%iﬁuﬁﬁéaﬂﬁifr@mi@%ﬁ%
120%sk BT 5 B (A& BRIE
EHRE)EBIA - #ﬁ%*ﬁ}\‘fﬁé%
HRERSZOBITMEER BRE
BBRAS SR R BBRIS 240 - At - 78
%Z&EEGQWRHNR%"*Ei%m
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZE—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

26. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

26. TRUTRRIR (#8)

Notes: (Continued) BtaE  (4&)
a) (Continued) a) (&)
According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7& BER-ZTE _itﬂ +HREER
ZEEIRIEH]) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on 17 TR _—FF itﬁ SP et
July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and 4 July THFEECAMBE—FEFZ :n\
2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross receipt of ZEERIEO - AE @/,\H#E‘JEEA
each funeral services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 =FtA=+—H% uTiZKﬁWﬁ
in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies. As at 31 R 75 22 49 Fr W BR MR A B 8B 2 75 %17 5K
December 2016, the Group has deposited RMB33,998,000 REeE2serREBIERERE N
(2015: RMB33,856,000) in three financial institutions in T-RNE+-A=+—H XEKEE
Taiwan. RZE=ZMEESRBBITFHRARE
33,998,000 (ZE—HF: AR¥
33,856,0007T) °
The Group recognised a net gain on termination/lapse of AEEREE_T—RF+_A
funeral services deeds of RMB17,000 (2015: RMB395,000) St RLEEzEARRES X
in “other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or N —Iﬁ?ﬁgfiﬂﬁ%iﬁm ik
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. KR W = F 58 AR M17,0007T
(ZZ—nh%F: AR¥395,0007T) °
b) It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and b) ERBEXEEEESHANREGETH
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount will be %iﬁz&%ﬁ'&%ﬁﬁ iM% I8 & BB T
recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue recognition ARBEWRREREHEERR/Y S
criteria are met (note 2(r). (l‘ﬁ $20n) °
27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITESE
2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E—0F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Bank borrowings, secured RITEE  2HEF
Current liabilities mENa &
— Portion of term loan from bank —R—FAEEEEREN
due for repayment within 1 RITEHERLD
year 1,023 614
Non-current liabilities FEnRBERE
— Portion of term loan from bank —R—FRIBERYN
due for repayment after 1 RITERERBD
year 9,959 6,952
Total HEES 10,982 7,566
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H = - %
27. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, bank borrowings were due for
repayment, which are based on the scheduled repayment
dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, as
follows:

BT R i vt

—RETZA=+—HILFE

27. BITHE (E)

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8 R17E
EANTIEHAE (ENREaERBZE
AFTETERMTEEEE B HRTE ) EE

2016 2015

—E-R¥ —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AREF T

Within 1 year —FR 1,023 614
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRERWEA 1,393 626
After 2 years but within 5 years PRFRERAFR 3,267 1,951
After 5 years RAFE 5,299 4,375
9,959 6,952

10,982 7,566

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans. Further details of the Group’s liquidity risk
are set out in note 33(b). As at 31 December 2016, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2015: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

At 31 December 2016, the banking facilities of the Group
are secured by a personal guarantee to the extent of
RMB34,877,500 (equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2015:
RMB32,839,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000)) from Mr. Liu
Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu"), the controlling shareholder and director
of the Company. Such banking facilities were not utilized for
both years.

ﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ JBITREHFTIRIR o fif
REBERRE CHANEERAR
EREER-

REBFHERERES
H%TZ??E\%E’\]H,HJ?EEE
BN E & B )
3Bb) R ZE—RFE+=-A=
AEBEVWEEREHABDAEERE
ZTE—RFE) o

sl
B

s g

Eﬁﬂu}
o

e B

[1]
+
Wé*m%%ﬂf .

s

]%Q%
=
Ty
f:

FRARITIE B REIHEK AT (E -

R—FRIBEENRITEERESS
REREEET Bt ZFEARTER
R—FABAREE UHEAIEREE

o

R-ZE—XR"F+_A=+—8" ZKE
BZRTmME 2R RARN R ER
%?%%%%‘Jm“ﬁﬁ?ﬁiU%‘Jf‘ﬁi”ﬁ
H2 LR A AR34,877,5007T (HEE
75,000,000 70) Z AABER(ZE
—FHF: AR#32,839,0007T (HHE R
5,000,000%%70) ) - ZZRITRE N W
EFEEHLREA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

27.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

27. BITHEE (1)

RZE—ARNFEFR-_ZE—RAF+ A
—+—H8 BIEEZEERAERNOT:

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hE
Variable-rate EENF & 1.62-2.29% 1.88%

Bank borrowings of RMB10,982,000 (2015: RMB7,566,000)
denominated in NTD were secured by the freehold land
and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying amount of
RMB18,472,000 (2015: RMB17,034,000) (note 14(d)). Of
the total bank borrowings, RMB3,450,000 (2015: RMB nil) is

guaranteed by Mr. Liu.

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

28.

RITIEE ARY10,982,000L (=&
—RF: AR¥7,566,0007T) Ty AFT &
BEHE WAR BB Z KAERELI R
BFERmEERAR18,472,0007T
(ZZE—H%F: AR¥17,034,0007T0) 1F
TR (MIFE14(d)) - AR #3,450,0007TC
(ZE—R2F:  ARBZIL)BRBIEEE
Re

HREMBRARAZMER

(a) HmAMBMRRKRAZENEIHIA

financial position represents: =
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—ARF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREETT
At 1 January n—H—H 2,962 1,451
Acquisition through business BB ¥ %4 4 W iE
combination (note 40) (P 3E40) 7 -
Provision for the year FERE
— PRC Enterprise —FhEEREH
Income Tax 1,727 2,409
— Taiwan Enterprise —REEMEN
Income Tax - 173
Income tax paid FRNENAER
during the year (1,313) (1,072)
Exchange adjustments b 5, 58 B - 1
At 31 December R+—A=+—AH 3,383 2,962
Representing: 15 :
Tax recoverable CIRlqEhe (11) @)
Tax payable FET %18 3,394 2,969
3,383 2,962
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

28. IREMBRARAZAER

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a place
of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate up to 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong,
a preferential rate of 5% is applied. On 22 February
2008, the State Administration of Taxation approved
Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to which dividend
distributions out of retained earnings of foreign
investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will
be exempted from withholding income tax.

As all of the Group's foreign-invested enterprises in
the PRC are directly and wholly owned by Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is applicable
to the calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of the retained
profits of RMB3,373,000 (2015: RMB2,410,000) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act of
Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption is
not applicable for investment in foreign profit-seeking
enterprise, which is subject to income tax at the rate
of 17%.

(#)

(b)

RAEBRELEFRIBEEE
—EENF—A—HE RiEF
Bl EATSRE - WIETE P B AL
AR A & FE M B S R B A L Bk
BREEEMMEEERANIEE
PR 7E AR Bk 37 Bk B A A HE Hh BY
FRZIEERMGE BARSEE
A (FlEREFEZ KRS )
EEE10% 2 Bl R G aNTa T
TRBEBFEMKL ZWEE - FTIR
RAZBEFRAE% BRHIEA
BR-_ZEZENF_A -+ -8t
AE BT B1(2008)8 155 - Uk - 4N E
TER_ZTETLFF_A=1—
AR 2 REBFERRE DK
1SR BT ARSI -

ENAEERPREZFABINE B
ENRAESTBEMAINHEBA
REZZEHR TEEBENH
2R EA5% o AR AR
FZEMNB AR ZREEE I
EHEZE R T RATRER A &
FIRDIR - AL AR RER A M IEIRE
O ERRBEFFET N ZIE
R TE A R #53,373,000T (=&
—FE: AR¥E2,410,0007T) L
B

B REPERBMEWES
F21G UABTEABENEF
CERBRENE S —RE R
EMESHNREFHRRBHRAT
FE - BA ARRBEA - B
REALTERNEINEFFBRE
IRE - R ERENAEHRTEER
17% °
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(Continued)

As one of the Group's subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly-
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan, a rate
of 17% is applicable to the calculation of the income
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of the retained profits of RMB14,307,000 (2015:
RMB7,567,000) as the Company controls the dividend
policy of this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of Withholding
Rates for Various Incomes issued by Ministry of
Finance of Republic of China, the net dividends or
profit distributed to a profit seeking enterprise having
its head office outside the territory of the Republic
of China from investment in an enterprise within the
territory of the Republic of China shall be withheld at a
rate of 20% of the amount distributed.

As one of the Group’s subsidiary operates within the
territory of the Republic of China having its head
office outside the territory of the Republic of China,
a rate of 20% is applicable to the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015
as the subsidiary has no retained profit that can be
distributed.
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28. ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬂiﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁ

(b)

AERDIELERIREE (&)

AR ARNEEEF —RHKEARF
BINERFI G WhH—BEA
EAMRINRB AR ERESE
WE FEMSNNERTER
17% ° AR AN R AL Hl % M B A
B2 BRI E HEEZE 5T
ARABERA B RKDIE -
KRG EVBBRER D IRRE &
FIRATFZH 2 BERBARE
14,307,000 (ZZE—RF: AR
#&7,567,0007T ) 1E H B -

B RIEHERBEMBEE
RS BEABHBRREERAUE L
RMERENPERBEINNS
MEXRARERPERBEREAKN
EEMESHREIRFFE
B RIR 5 Tk R B E20% 1 i 78
e

ARAEEES —RHMERQRE
FERBIBANEEBBHEERES
RAERBEEI FTHEILBEEN
RABEABRRAE20% BEREE
—E-XER-ZT—HF+-A
=t+—HIEFE  WBARWER
M REIRE R F - AR R ERE
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28. ﬁ%ﬂ#ﬁﬂf%ﬂiﬁZFﬁﬁﬁ

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB27,689,000 (2015: RMB23,839,000)
available for offset against future profits. Other than
tax losses amounting to RMB19,387,000 (2015:
RMB16,329,000) that would be expiring from 5
years to 10 years pursuant to the relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the
remainder at the end of the reporting period can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

(o)

REBRELERIBEE
RZZE—XR"F+=-—A=+—8"
REEBZABHBFEEBBARYE
27,689,000 (ZZE—HF: AR
#%23,839,0007T ) 7] FA LA §8 AR 5k
A BRI R - MR A EK
WA AR EBRSE10FE B H 8
T8 AR#19,387,0007T (=
T—HF: AR%16,329,0007T)
AN AR BIR 2 ISR EB AT 4B R
HAfEEE - AR IEF 2 AR ]
TER - MU E SR AR B M ERIE
EHEEE-

PROVISIONS 29. BfE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Provision for future costs of 1R {7 138 AR 755 o2 oK 2R Rl A 1 il
delivering funeral services

At 1 January n—H—H 1,562 -
Additional provisions made YE I BESNEE 1,107 1,558
Exchange adjustment b 5 3R & 182 4
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,851 1,562

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of delivering
funeral services in future, after taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee payable to
the sub-contractor for each funeral service deed performed,
the current market conditions and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period to estimate if the receipts
in advance for funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and determine the
need of making a provision in the consolidated financial
statements.

AEELEBTERAR (BRERYD
RAAZETRER) R BBHR
RIKER BB IR 2 fh 5T AN
EEBRME - EMEEAEERBR
#) 2 B

ZEMEFNERASECETH
BERGROBNIEBEZOE
ER REMSRNLDBEEH 2R
WEBET EIEEREREMR
ER iR A A R NG R LA
BERBROBRFIERST B IA
AR E IR 2 R fE K
A WETE =G BREFA M BHRE

B
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. &%
No. of shares Amount
KinE A &8
RMB’000
ARETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREE AT EBR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December R -ZT—FHF—H—H-
2015 and 31 December 2016 —ZE—hRF+=A
=+—HBERZZT—KRF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and ESETRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2015, 31 December HRZ-ZE—HF—A—H =
2015 and 31 December 2016 —hF+=H
=t+—HERZZE—X"F
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual

assets.
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31. RESERVES 31. i

AEEGAER T BRBHER
ERESH T WERNGAERSE
g% o AN BB R D 2 FE R

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and (a)
closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FRZEHFFHINNOT
in the Company’s individual components of reserves
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
DY 3ve-]
ERZ
BiER ER G wRGR REER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETx
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-1F—H—H 220,633 (28,542) 7,812 (101,372) 98,531
Loss for the year AFEEAE - - - (28,085) (28,085)
Exchange differences RERBRREEZ
on translation of ERER
financial statements - 8,248 - - 8,248
Total comprehensive loss AEEREBELE
for the year - 8,248 - (28,085) (19,837)
Lapse of share options granted £ 1% H B I % - - (59) 59 -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-A1F
+-A=+-H 220,633 (20,294) 7,753 (129,398) 78,694
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—RE—HA—H 220,633 (20,294) 7,753 (129,398) 78,694
Loss for the year AFEEEE - - - (30,167) (30,167)
Exchange differences on BEBBRREEZ
translation of financial ERER
statements - 7,734 - - 7,734
Total comprehensive loss AEEREBELE
for the year - 7,734 - (30,167) (22,433)
Lapse of share options granted £ 1% H B I K 4% - - (77) 77 -
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+-A=+-H 220,633 (12,560) 7,676 (159,488) 56,261
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31. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the Company’s share
premium account are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in relation
to the acquisition of Bau Shan during the group
reorganisation in 2007. The merger reserve of
the Group represents the difference between
aggregate net asset value of Bau Shan acquired
and the consideration paid for the acquisition of
Bau Shan pursuant to the group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

According to the applicable laws and regulations
in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their net profits
after taxation, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in Taiwan,
to a non-distributable reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches the registered capital of
the respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to owners but after offset the
previous years' losses, if any.
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(iii)
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31. RESERVES (Continued) 31. fEfEm (&)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) REBEBMEENAE (E)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (iv) ZEZEEFE

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate at least 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined under the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable
to companies established in the PRC, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of dividends to owners. The non-distributable
reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of
the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after
such issue is not less than 25% of its registered
capital. The non-distributable reserve fund is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

According to the Vietman Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set their
reserve fund according to the respective Charter.
Under the Charter of the Vietnam subsidiaries,
they are required to transfer 5% to 15% of
profit after tax to set up the reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 10% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises.

RIEFREBEREE AEE
2R BB RABAGERE
BARFEKT ZARZ
EAGTRARTEHREE
2 BRBL1&EF & 10%
BERASEREES B2
ZRECESEBACEZFE
& &R50% 4 Lt - [ 3% 18
SERNBR RS A DR
B B RTHETT o A A R 6 48
& Al ARE T FEE (10
B) ERBEEBLER
EMI B A B 2 BEINE A HE
AR AR BBITE 2 EHBT
BIEREFMEERZ25% °
BRI TR DR E S
FEDIK -

BIEMERARE AEBZ
MEMEAR A RESEN
NABRR I RBES B
MERBARMARER
EBEES%E15%2 B
ReaMEi@mEses 522
MG SEEECE
& AR10% A 1E -
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31. &l (#8)
(b) HEMHERMR (E)

31. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Properties revaluation reserve
The properties revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for freehold land
and buildings held for own use in note 2(f) and
is not distributable.

(vi) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(s).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve
The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to eligible participants of the Group
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(0).

(c) Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to owners
of the Company was RMB61,145,000 (2015:
RMB91,235,000).
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31. i (48)

31. RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
owners, return capital to owners, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is total liabilities divided by total assets.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 were as follows:

(d)

EXREHE

AEEEREARNZ BIESBERAN
SEREMFEL S M AEA A
R B s E A s RS E
A g - WA A5 IRARE AR LR
DERBA o

REFLRABRENGERE  AREE
HEAREBAIN BB
REERTHRAAN BITHBRMO K
HEEERDEE-

MEMBEEAR & AEELE
EABHERAERERAMNELE.
EEBBHRLBEAERINAE
EifE -AEBEEBEERELL
KEEFREEKRF - RZF—RF
;rZE—RAF+ZA=1+—HZ

BEAEBLERNT:
2016 2015
—EB—XREF —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Total liabilities BEE 119,952 107,008
Total assets BEE 252,570 271,090
Gearing ratio EEAMFLE 47.49% 39.47%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ERTFELE AEEHEAE
B2 AN EEE)  NRAIHE
B RRE N ZINLE N2 E
AR TEBR A ©
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32 #HpgsiozHBEIR

CATEGORIES
2016 2015
—NE —E—ARF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AREFIT
Financial assets HMBEE
Financial assets designated BE RIEATE
as at fair value through FFABm M BEE
profit or loss 38,640 34,777
Available-for-sale investment AIHEERSE = 1,500
Loans and receivables B e RIE
(including cash and (BRERa2 X
cash equivalents) HWEEEY) 103,097 100,985
Financial liabilities HBEAR
Amortised cost BIH R AN 19,678 13,529

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk arising from financial instruments. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risk are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

0

(ii)

In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as the
receivable for each individual customer is not
significant and the Group generally offer credit
period of 45 days to customers. The Group
does not obtain collateral in respect of its
financial assets.

In respect of other receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as
for 27% (2015: 44%) of the total loans
and receivables (excluding cash and cash
equivalents) is due from a representative of a
funeral parlour.

In order to minimise risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condition of customers.
These evaluations focus on the debtor’s
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtor as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtor operates. The Group does
not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

33. MGAREERMEIAZL
F{E (&)

() FERRE (&)
()  BEERT 2 EUE 5 IR M
5 AR WA E R RS E P
ZHBLAEKR BAEE—
frEEFRHASAZEEH
BEERBAHRE - AEH
WEE 5B EEFER

[}
an °

iy PEEMEBUREZIME A%H
AHZEERBREIEZSE
BAZERIE R L RRE
R AEBRER N ERR
HRAZE (T eiERe kRes
BW)227% (ZE—HF:
44% ) BRI —BREFEEREK
FE -mMEABHETEFEER

e

SEERERR EEED
EEERREAY 2%EE
ERBIFEER HEFR
BiRtr 2 EEMEDREE
T %FHEETEH AR A
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 HERBEHERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  The majority of the Group's investments are
financial assets designated as at FVTPL which
include mutual funds and unit trusts established
in Taiwan and structured deposits and bank
wealth management product. Given the high
credit standing of investment counterparties,
management does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet theirs obligations.

(iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with good credit
rating.

(v)  The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company’s board approval. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current rates at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group is
required to pay.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

LFHE ()

(a)

(b)

EERE (&)
(iy AKRERBAREREER
BRATEF ABR 2 HBE
E PEREERY NE
ﬁ%%&%u% FEEEMUK
EEUEFRRRTHEER
EDD ERIEEHF AR

SEEMNR BEREY TR
%EEH&QE?H A
BUIREZEE-

vy mEELHNEERBAER
ARHFHAEENRELT
KERTT ©

v) AKBEAEBHREAERS
AEBEAZEERR -

FRAEERE S REMERK
HMAS Z ZERKRE —FE8E
W RHTEE22 ©

MENE S Rk

AEBETEMNECEERARTA
REMREERER  BEURE
BEEITTEERE  UREBEEN
REFREHTR  ARERLAF
BEg i - AEBERIZ R
REHEZERDESTREE
BT ER R BN FEARRE
HEFRAZIRE AR EESR
HERUSTM 2 AHEERE - XA
ENEEHERBRSESF K-

THIRBEINN R E RN EE
FITEMBREZHTAHEH
B BREITEMBREDRES
MARBBEASRE (BENAS
MM EEAEZ N EFIR  RFE
M ARBERRE B ZHX)
AR EBANK 2 &F B

st
= o
Ean



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H = - =

—RETZRA=t+—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. ¥ RBEERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

AF(E ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEZRAM (&)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings and WITEEREMERNINEE S
other loan is prepared based on the scheduled MREEMNEERDRRSR -
repayment dates.
2016
E-RE
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Ba-% BARE SHRER
REX R-FR  EIREE  EIREF ERIF HeREAR IRE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR  AR®BTRT AE®TR AERRTT AR®TR AERTR  ARRTR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3E47 48 #58 &
Trade payables ERESER - 1,261 - - - 1,261 1,261
Accruals and other payables et B RE
JERTIR 7,035 - - - - 7,035 7,435
Bank bortowings S S 1215 1215 3,644 5,934 12,008 10,982
7,435 2,476 1,215 3,644 5,934 20,704 19,678
2015
“E-nf
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BA—F febelika BHRHER
REX R=FR  BIRRE  BIREF HBERE BeRELE RAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  ARMTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  AR¥ETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3E47 £ 8115 & &
Trade payables EREHHER - 855 - - - 855 855
Accruals and other payables A AERE
FERHE 5108 - - - - 5,108 5,108
Bank borrowings BITRE - 752 752 2,257 4,640 8,401 7,566
5,108 1,607 752 2,257 4,640 14,364 13,529
The amounts included above for variable interest fin )2 B 2. EMEBMRETE
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities ZW:W.:JM’"J? J:LE‘JE?FMEHT
are subject to change if changes in variable interest BAREFEL qu)\Z BEEH
rates differ from those estimates of interest rates R

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 HERBEHERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate risk

(0

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to borrowings at variable rates. The Group did
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its

debt obligations.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk mainly
concentrates on fluctuation of market interest rate
arise from the Group's borrowings.

()  The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group's borrowings at the end of

the reporting period.

LFHE ()

(0

JES1

ERTY EET s
I E & E R ﬂi’%llﬂ@'ﬁ
RAITEM B T A hEEE?
To

AEBzBERENEREREE
STPRAKEERELZTEHE
ESEIE

() TRAFASERHEHR
MEEMEIER

2016 2015
—E-RE —HF

Effective Effective

interest interest

Note RMB'000 rate(%) RMB'000 rate(%)

ERfIE BRI &

M= AR®TR (%) ARBFT (%)

Variable rate
borrowings FRER

1.62% to
2.29%
1.62%E

Bank borrowings RITHE 26 2.29% 1.88%
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The Executive Directors performed sensitivity
analysis with estimation of a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points and considered that
the impact is not significant and accordingly no
sensitivity analysis presented.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates for variable-rate borrowings,
with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
RMB91,000 (2015: RMB63,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points (2015: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Executive Directors
monitor the Group's foreign currency exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through bank deposit denominated in a foreign
currency that is a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk
is USD, RMB and HK$. The Group's policy is
to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot values when necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

33. MERREERMBIRZ
LFHE (&)

( FZEEp (&)
(i) BUBREZHT
HITES AT BEE N
A 100 1] B Bh HE 1T 81U
EoH UREFENTE
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e

RZE—RF+ZA=1—
A7 BB F R
EFTEE100E E 25 M P
BHAMEHEFTE  BIE
A E 2 R B E1E
R A 4 A R 91,000
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63,0007T) c E 4R & HEx=
HEmTreRABEME AT
B IR Ep o
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HIR P 8 2 A R R &
o mED TR RENHRE
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BEFEARFR - RAEE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 HERBEHERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 2FE(#E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(d) E%EEE

(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) FrE¥ 2 &% E

The following table details the Group’s exposure TR RSB RS R
at the end of the reporting period to currency AR E 2T ee & LASN
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities ZEMTEEWREEK
denominated in a currency other than the BEMES ZE®ERER -5t
functional currency of the entity to which they EWME - BEBRESETIUAA
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts RE3|R HEDERE4HEA
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated 2 BIERfE R o

using the spot rate at the year end date.

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

FEHZSPERRE (UARRIIT)

2016 2015
IE-RE —I-1f

uss RMB HK$ Us§ RMB HK$

£ PN:1 - BT e AR BT

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000

T T T Fr e i

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 6 137 764 13 5,428 -

Trade and other payables BHREMERNTE - - (1,248) - - (1,280)
Net exposure arising from recognised BREERBEMESZ

assets and liabilities BRFE 6 137 (484) 13 5,428 (1,280)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016



(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

33. MERREERMBIAZ
AF(E ()

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (dy E®RER (&)
Sensitivity analysis (i) SEEDHT
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRINEERERRERE
change in the Group’'s loss after taxation BEESEATEZEXRNZA
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if HHBEE EREME
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has Hith @ b BB T E 215
significant exposure at the end of the reporting T REEZBRBIEEE
period had changed at that date, assuming (REFHEE)#gEE 2R
all other risk variables remained constant. In R -FUEmE 2RE
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged P TT R IR T B B OB g
rate between the HK$ and the US$ would eRAETTH BT EAER
be materially unaffected by any changes in FEgmTANERTE-
movement in value of the US$ against HK$.
2016 2015
8-1% 3%
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange loss after  accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation osses
EfL#t/ BRRESER RitEH BxL#/  BRERER 2:E1B
(TB) (2m) /&S (B) /&Y (T%)  (#m)/Ry (&) /B
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTTE  AERTT AREFT  ARETR
uss e 6.2% - - 5.6% 1 1
(6.2%) - - (5.6%) 1) 1)
RMB ARE 6.2% 1 1 56% 316 316
(6.2%) (7) (7) (5.6%) (316) (316)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2015.

EREINZ DITERIEIRIR
EEEERYEERIE
(RBEMRBITZEERR
BAARKE)SEEERK
BEE gD 2 IRGEER
g EHZEIRE-

EEHREINE 2RK
SNER R B AN E
M EARERA 2%EYN
BITR MZEHHTASE
AREBRHE HRE S INE
Rk ZAIRE—F—F
FRRZ BREEETT-

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR

177



178

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

NFE+TZA=+—RHILFE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 HERBEHERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Equity price
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign
stock markets and structured deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated as at
FVTPL had been 10% (2015: 10%) lower/higher, loss
for the year and accumulated loss would increase by
RMB3,237,000 (2015: RMB3,185,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the Executive
Directors and the audit committee. A valuation report
with analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the
Executive Directors. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the Executive Directors and the audit
committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the
reporting dates.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. MERBEERMEIAZ
DFE ()

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurements

()

Fair value measurements

as at 31 December 2016 categorised into

RZS-AE+ZAZ+—HH
LFEHESRR

Fair value at
31 December
2016 Level 1
RIZ-RE
+ZA
=+-H
WAEE bR |
RMB'000 RMB'000

ABRRTR AE®TR ARRTR

Level 2 Level 3

2R EHEL |
RMB'000  RMB'000

N1 e

APEE

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2015 categorised into
RZZ-EEFZA=+—HH

AFEHENEAR
Fair value
at 31 December
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
WZZ-1%
+ZA
=+-H
HATE - E°E E-F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETR

Asset wE
Financial assets designated as at FVIPL  #F ARAFEA
BRZBBAE 38,640 38,640

34,777 34,777 - -

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfer between instrument in Level 1
and Level 2 or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

(g) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

(9)

REBEE-_ZE—XREN_ZE—FHF
ﬂz+—a¢¢r;' F—En
JE EZF?]‘E?H\L?Q'D‘M%Q

AEBZBRR/NELEE R 2R
THRER QN FEER 2B -

WHAFEIEZHEIARZ
NEE

NE B R R AR 2 B T
BEvEEEEENR_-_T—RER
ZE-RFF+ZA=+—HZA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZFT—XF+-A=+—HIFE

4. FERMEAXS

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material related
party transactions:

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

AREBEDTLNETBRABET AR S

(@)

FTEEEASHME
AEETIZERBAEMEEES
NP ARRBES (AP ESFT
BIRETHESFHES (RIME
OFT IR ) 2 FRIRIAT

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREETF T

Short-term employee benefits %2 #i{& 5 1& 7 7,464 5,883
Post-employment benefits Bt 48 A 30 25
7,494 5,908

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

(b) Remuneration for relatives of key
management personnel
Remuneration for relatives of key management
personnel of the Group is as follows:

(b)

HE@BmEA ATEIRA] (R
726(b)) °

TREBEAEHRBZME

AEEIEERABREI M
mT

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AER®TRT ARBFT

Short-term employee benefits %2 #i{& B & 7 130 386
Post-employment benefits BER 1S A = 4
130 390
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —Z —

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 ERESTH ()
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other related parties transactions

0

(ii)

(iii)

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks and service marks in
connection with the Group’s funeral services
business at a consideration of Hk$1,000 per
year.

On 15 March 2003, a renewal deed of trust (the
“Niao Song Deed"”) was entered into between
Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li"”), spouse of
Mr. Liu, in relation to the land property situated
in Taiwan at No. 943 in Section Linnei, Niao
Song Township, Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the
“Niao Song Property”). Under the Niao Song
Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song
Property, which is owned by Bau Shan, shall
be registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li
has agreed that she shall act in the interest of
Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song Property
during the term of the Niao Song Deed.

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing
the licensee, Chongging Xibao, to lawfully
use the property situated at unit 1404 on
Level 14, Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping
Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the “Licensed
Property”) as the registered office without
the payment of rent or licence fee. The
signed confirmation from Mr. Liu authorising
Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property
as its registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s
personal use, rental and mortgage of the
Licensed Property. There was no revenue or
profit contributed by the Licensed Property
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 as there had been no occupancy of the
Licenced Property during the years.

(0

—

i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sk M et

NFETZA=1T—BHLHFE

HBEER 2R 5

a2

RZE——F—H—H ' &
NAICHERRE (T2
S ) BT PIEET Al B ik
([FEERzE]) B EED
FALERERAEER
B R AT Al A LAE B AR &
ERERGEREB AT
EERREELD REAT
££1,00058 7T °
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EEFEE L ([FL
T B hEEZEB)BZR
BESHZSNBMAER
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ME | I — D EEETR
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%‘J%EEEER nTﬁEm = H =
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55 FA BT A 0 3 1E = v i 9
NE B ERR B A
ZEAMEERER HME

EERAZ HREBE—F
—NERZF-AFtT A

=+ —HLLFEREERZ
PR MEFAIERF
PR 4 5 SR Ui 2 =t A o

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR

181



182

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE
3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 EREHTH ()

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Other related parties transactions (Continued)
(i) (Continued)
The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu
will last until 30 January 2052.

(iv)  Guarantee for an amount of RMB34,878,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2015:
RMB32,839,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000))
is given by Mr. Liu to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

(vy  On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr. Liu
Ting-Husan on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care services of BLL at a consideration of
HK$1.000 per year.

(vij  Guarantee for the Group’s bank loan of
RMB3,450,000 (2015: RMB nil) is given by Mr.
Liu during the year ended 31 December 2016.

(d) Amounts due from directors
Particular of the amounts due from directors, which
are included in trade and other receivables, are
disclosed as follows:

(9

(d)

HEMBEELT 2R S (&)

(i (&)
BB 2 MET AR
@ BEE_ER_F—A
=+Hl-

(iv) 2% Emt AR %34,878,000
7t (18 & 75,000,000
L) (ZE—RE AR
#32,839,0007t (&R
5,000,000 1) ) Z 318
REER EREBEE_F
—NERZE-—RAF+ A
T+ —RLFERTAEE
MARRBZIRITRE 2K
o

vy, R-ZE—XFWMA—H %
FEEF S EMAEME HBR
FT AT R DA(E FR BT E M
RISEBER B TREIEZ
KRB AEEFF1,0008 7T °

vy #BEZE=-_F—X~"F+=A
=+—HIFE BxEm
AR #3,450,0007T (=&
—AFAREZTIT)ZAR
EEIRITERIREIER -

FEWEERIE
EWEFFR (FFAE S REME
WOROR) M IS BT

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARETFIT

Mr. Kim Eun Back SEHEEE - 20
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BIRNE - -

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 ERESTH ()
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Amounts due from directors (Continued) (d)y FEWESFIE (&)

Maximum amount outstanding during the year is as FRNESAEESHENFBN
follows: N

2016 2015

—E—RE —T-RAF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AR T IT

Mr. Kim Eun Back TEBEE 20 20

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai ZINE A& 5,421 16,212

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and SERNEEF 2O RARERE
repayable on demand. =

() Amount due from key management (e) EWEFEEEBAERNE
personnel

Particular of amounts due from key management, ERFBERAERE(FFAZ

which are included in trade and other receivables are 5 R EMEWRIE) B R
disclosed as follows: T

2016 2015

—E—-R¥ —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREF T

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REBZ T 172 13

Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan BlpEer & 37 3

Maximum amount outstanding during the year is as FRNESAEBESENFBDN
follows: T

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TRT ARBEF T

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan wREBLZLT 284 40

Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan Blpz ¥4 103 20
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE
35. OPERATING LEASES

(@)

(b)

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

35. EEHE

(@)

AEBEAEEA
RZE—RF+=_A=+—8"
RS REEEHEmARE
2 AR AR & 4% 2 B 8
BRI

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREETTT

Within 1 year —FR 8,222 8,187
After 1 year but within —FEERTFR

5 years 31,649 31,351

After 5 years AFi& 34,654 41,913

74,525 81,451

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its sales offices and hire
of funeral parlours and funeral service centres. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 1 to 20 years (2015: 1 to
20 years) and certain leases include contingent rentals
which are based on certain percentage of sales and
the PRC consumer price index respectively.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted
with tenants in respect of part of its office, plant and
equipment and investment property for the following
future minimum lease payments:

(b)

REHEXhEAREREET
HERLENERABERENLEE
RBHOENZEE - B Z FH
BEHER—E-+H(ZFT—1A
F—E2_1+%F) BETHOE
T RIRBEHERARXER DL
RFABEEEREHRGE ZHR
Gkl

AEBEAEEAA
RZE—RF+_A=+—8"
REBBEBAIPWAE - HE KR
BRIEEMEMEB P 2K
REEEERNRRBEOT

2016 2015
ZE—RE —ZT-TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETT

Within 1 year —F R 15 209

None of the lease includes contingent rentals.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. A KR
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not RUMBHREARBE IR T —REF
provided for in the financial statements are as follows: T A=+ —BREAREBITZEREEN
T
2016 2015
—E-REF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETF T
Capital expenditure contracted EENBERIEREZ
but not provided for: BEARFX:
— Property, plant and equipment s/ E N 24 60
— Investment in a joint venture —-R—EEEREIREAE 6,500 6,500
— Acquisition of equity interests e NG N -
in a company - 2,388
6,524 8,948
37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. ERRE
As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings of the R-E—RF+-_A=1+—H £K&EH
Group were secured by land and buildings with an RITEEREMETBERAAERAR
aggregate carrying amount of RMB18,472,000 (2015: #18,472,0000 (ZZE—HF: AR
RMB17,034,000). 17,034,0007T) 2 + 1 RAE F 4R -

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —

B M et

38. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

T-XF+-AS+—ALEE

38. B AT

Details of the Company's subsidiaries, which are
private companies or, if established/incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(@) M=

—RERZ

£¢+_

A=+—H &2 TZWE

(BRART (HRES
S AL ) B

iﬁﬁl\ﬁﬁz
LB EEBILAR

FARBARR 25 8) 2 BT

Place and date of Issued and fully
Name of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
R/ BETRMERNGE
GANGEE IR AR EREs s g TERY/EENN
2016 2016 2015
I8-AE  Z8-KE TEF
Directly held
EERE
Bau Shan * Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/ Taiwan
Bl aE il REBERY HEBRRYG
“AN\ETZAZTAR #1A%70,452,0007C RORRERR/ 28
Full Spread (China) Limited ** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/ Hong Kong
5 October 2007
W (RE)BRAF ik 1% REBR/ER
“ZTHETARR
Allied Smart Development Limited ** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/ Hong Kong
1 April 2010
FRERERAA &k 1AL RERR/EE
—2-ZFMA-A
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited ** Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and sale
9 August 2010 of funeral services deeds/ Hong
Kong
REEG (BE)ERAF ik 1AL RUBERBR
“Z2-ZEN\ANH BERBRBZY/BR
Dayrise Enterprises Limited ** BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/ BVI
13 September 2010
ARERARAR EERAHS B RERR/ZBERES
“E-EEAATZR %7
Jing Run Limited ** BVI Ordinary 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 US$1,000,000
REERAR ERRAHE il TER/EBRAES
“2-25-f1=H 1,000,000 7T
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Limited ** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/ Hong Kong
17 April 2012
ik 1AL TER/BA
“Z-ZEMATHA
Bao De ** Taiwan Ordinary 83.33% 83.33%  Inactive/Taiwan
6 November 2000 NTD108,000,000
Big 7 il TER/ 88
314 7%108,000,0007T
Ban Shan Consulting Limited ** Samoa Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services/
14 November 2013 Taiwan
EET il R/ A8
—T-=F 1%
T-A+mA

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

38. BT (#8)

38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a

(Continued) (a) &)
Place and date of Issued and fully
Name of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
31 v BRTRBMERRE
HELRER BIBER B HREF 411 TERE/EENY
2016 2016 2015
ZB-R"E  IB-RE -T-0F

Indirectly held

RERs

Chongging Xibao * The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 US$8,000,000 investment holding/ The PRC

EEHE* HE HMER REBERBR
ZIZTLECATAR 8,000,000 REER/RE

Chongging Xizhou ** The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/ The PRC
25 October 2006 RMB300,000

)k P AR RERERE,/ PE
“ERRETAZTERRA ARH300,00070

Sino-Life Eternities Limited ** BVI Ordinary 78.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/ BV
15 April 2010 US§10,000

PR ERERAT ERRAES ! RELR/ERELES
—E-ZEMAT+EA 10,000%7T

Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited ** Hong Kong HK$1 78.75% 7875%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 Hong Kong

REHEBREERART £k 17T WARE /B
“E-ZENACTH

Jinhao Enterprises Limited ** BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010

SRMEERDF ERRAES ! REBR/ERELES
—Z-TEAATER %7

Sino-Departures Limited ** Hong Kong HK$5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 Hong Kong

PEATERRAT ik SETL WRA%/EE
—E——£+-f1A

Bao Son Life ** Vietnam Paid up capital 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US$200,000

Bl il BRBA REER,/ B
“E-ZFRAZTHH 200,000%7T

HLV Duc Hoa ** (note (b)) Vietnam Paid up capital - - Sale of burial plots and provision of
22 June 2012 VND39,750,000,000 cemetery maintenance services/

Vietnam

HLV Duc Hoa** (HizE(b)) il ARBAMEE HERMRIEH
—E-ZFRAZHCA 39,750,000,0007C EE%ERE/ MR

BLL** Taiwan Ordinary 100% - Provision of elderly care and related
12 October 2015 NTD15,000,000 services/Taiwan

TE# aE L 100% - REEEREBHARE/ AL
“E-R¥TATCA #76415,000,0007

* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * HNEEBAERE
** A limited liability company > BRAMERA

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

The Group does not hold any ownership interests in the
entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on the terms of
the Contract under which HLV Duc Hoa was established
and controlled by the Group, the Group receives
substantially all of the variable returns related to the
involvement in HLV Duc Hoa's operations and net assets
and has the ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that
most significantly affect those returns.

The following tables list out the information of the
Group's subsidiaries which has material non-controlling
interest (NCI). The summarised financial information

38. BT (#8)

(b)

7R £ B A HLY Duc HoaZ fF
A pT A - AT IRIEASEE
18 AR SZ K342 B HLV Duc Hoa Z 7%
BRZ IR AERBUNEAS T 2
A2 BRHLV Duc Hoa %75 2 /% &)
QBREBREE URABEHTE
HZERHREZAFE ZHLV Duc
HoaZ%t 7 -

TREINAKESMBELR (FE
BEXOFERER) MEFR - T2
WA BERMBRTETER

presented below represents the amounts before any NGRS N i -
inter-company elimination.
2016 2015
—ZT—RE —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Bao Son Life and its HLEGREMEBAT
subsidiary, HLV Duc Hoa HLV Duc Hoa
NCI percentage FIERERE DL 20% 20%
Current assets MEEE 21,225 34,054
Non-current assets EMBEE 879 1,163
Current liabilities REAE (45,230) (42,009)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (118) (106)
Net liabilities BEFRR (23,244) (6,898)
Carrying amount of NCI IR ERREE (4,649) (1,380)
Revenue Wz 516 777
Loss for the year KEFZEIE (15,437) (1,751)
Total comprehensive loss SHEELEE (16,345) (2,198)
Loss attributable to NCI eI IR B 2 B8 (3,087) (350)
Total comprehensive loss IR EREL 2
attributable to NCI FHEBIEGE (3.269) (440)
Net cash inflows from BB S RAFRE
operating activities 993 204
Net cash outflows from wEEER SN FE
investing activities (144) (381)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIBREZEBROHEERZXH
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme"”) was approved and adopted. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(@)

(b)

(9

(d)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group
as incentive or rewards for their contributions to the
Group.

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest, including any
executive directors and any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; and (ii) any consultants, advisers, agents,
partners or joint-venture partners of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of
that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
year end date.

REARBDABMS-_ZTZEAFNA
“tHEMBRRERRESR  CHER
Rt 8) ([FEREsT81])) - Bk
R B T E iR BT

(@)

(b)

(9]

(d)

WA 82 B REAA AR
75 45 B 5 4 1 o T B 4 )
HA AR BRERE HEE {55
5025 K o B L R M B o
$ -

AERZEEREORAR R
EAERIPE AR ARE R B K
AEmENER ((REBR])
MEEENETRE  BRAL
A BEMIMBARRERIREE
AT MITE S KM AT
EX (BRBUFEHTES) K
(VAR B R/ S EAEAAIFT B A A)
MERAAA R RE A%
ARBEBH-

FERHERT BB MR AEMITIEE
Brg LR TIIERE  (NEFE
BRENZHEH(BAERER
BB R e R RER LB
NEBZATHRTE (DB Z
FrEBRENZRO R B AEZ
EEBRORBIMFARERL
BRH U HE R ik R
FEBREELN R MMEE -

RIREE BT 8 R R bR A%
%ﬁ%%%FﬁWA%$%%%
TTERATRER TN AEA K
TRBEARNRADETERMNH
10% ([—AREHEIREE]) -

RIRRE BR8] 7] T EITHARD

A8 A74,250,0000%  FHE RARA
AIRFEBEETRNAI0% ©

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREZERCEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Unless approved by the Company'’s shareholders, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any participants in
any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no
such offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme or the termination of the scheme. An offer
shall be deemed to have been accepted by the eligible
participant concerned in respect of all shares which are
offered to such participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
eligible participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company, within such time as may be specified
in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 5 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the
notice is given.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

BRIFEA R BIRRALME - & RIPME
il + — & A MR A E T & T
M2EENEREDEITRET
BTN A TMSEERLE
S HEEITRMEI% -

ZHEANEER AR ERS2 R
EfEd - WARERERE=1TH
HEARHEENAER2EE
EBEBERW R RNBRER B
AR HAFRAXERLERT
SHRHEBANMER - EARQF
REBAASIFANFRAZERS
HEEBRZ2EEEARENZN
BEMEEIAN  BRNTARBANA
REEFIOBTERARAES
BREORE AR2RZEAER
SEENZEHRONELD RS
EmAR2EERR-

MR T —EFRO2BRER
= WERR L BERTEFRHA
IRTT{E - Al AT IR EZHES
SRERBEREZRET  HEw
WA S BRI B AR 42 A H A
H104F o

MR ——FRE ZBRREm
= HERR L BERT—FH
PRTTIE o A] FTE BRI E X E S
SENREEREZRET  EEH
WA S B R B AR i B HA e
FF54F -

ERABARAARNRREHEER
HEER T 2B Eb D TR
- BAE B ERILTT
158 Re 77150 8 ASUHE PO I O BB £ B
B - XA RBAMUERNMAARE
R SR AEHIBABATE K
MESERNHABEE-
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIRERERNEERZX

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#&)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as (i) EEREERECEREZEGD
follows: ™
Number of
shares issable Contractual
under options Life of life of
granted period options
WL Z AR R iR
AETRHEBE AREH BHFEY
Options granted in 2010:
R-Z-—TEREERE:
Options granted to directors:
RTEE 2 BRE:
—on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-ZF_A+—H —E-ZEFNAT—AZE 1045
—E-TF_A+—H
Options granted to employees:
BRTREE 2 BIRE:
—on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-ZF_A+—H —E-ZEFNAT—AZE 1045
—E-TF_A+—H
Options granted to consultants:
WP ERE:
—on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-ZF_A+—H —E-ZEFNAT—AZE 1045
—E-TF_A+—H
Total share options 60,000,000
BB B
Options granted in 2012:
R-B-—FREZBRE:
Options granted to directors:
RTEE 2 HBIE:
—on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-R-T——F—A+<H “E-=F—-A+RHEE 54
—E—+H—A+AhaH
Options granted to employees:
RTEE 2 B :
—on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-R-T——F—A+<H “E-=F—-A+RHEE 54
—E—+H—A+AhaH
Total share options 16,920,000

AR

The method of settlement for the options granted are
by equity. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 11 February 2010 and 16 January
2012, the dates on which the options were granted,
were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24 respectively.

HEZHEBBRENRABESLEE
AR ARBRERBEE T —
EFE_A+—BARZE——F—
A+xB (BEREEREL Z A
H)azWmESRA16E TR
0.248 7T °

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREZERCEERZE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#8)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end of 0 /t\ R EAR 2 mARTT L AR A 5
the reporting period as follows: ERUNNE
2016 2015
—B-RE —T-01F
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average shares issuable average  shares issuable
exercise under options exercise  under options
price granted price granted
RStz HEEZ
miEFy BRETRT MEFY  BRIER #AT
fiER BB E 1T6e(E Bin& B
Outstanding at the FEY)EARITE
beginning of the year HK$1.10 58,788,000 HK$1.09 59,840,000
11087 1.09% 7T
Lapsed during the year FRNE KK HK$0.85 (980,000) HK$0.74 (1,052,000)
0.85# T 07487
Outstanding at the end of A& R 1T1E
the year HK$1.10 57,808,000 HK$1.10 58,788,000
1.10# T 1108 7T
Exercisable at the end of 4 A] T7T{F
the year HK$1.10 57,808,000 HK$1.10 58,788,000
1.10# T 1108 7T

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIRERERNEERZX

)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#&)
(Continued) G (&)
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at P BAOR 2 i R JE i B M R AT
the end of the reporting period are as follows: EHEARRE EARR 20T
Number of
shares issuable
under options  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2016 granted  period period price
BB ERE
ZE2-"E+ZA=1-H TRITROHHE BEE fTHER iR
Options granted to employees:
BRTEE 2 HARE:
-on 11 February 2010 8,348,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RIE-TE-AT-H “Z-ZFE-f[+-HZ ZZ-ZE)\f+-HZ 11887
“Z-ZE\RTH “R-ZE-A+-A
Options granted to consultants:
BT R 2 BB hE
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
“RIZ-TF-AT-H “E-TF-A+-HE —E- Aﬁ/\ﬂJr HE 11887
“T-TENAHE “TE-At-A
Options granted to director:
BI—tEFzBRE:
-on16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-ZF-A+1H —Z-—5-R+/HE “Z-=ZFf-fA+/HZ 0.607%8 7T
“Z2-=%-A+IH —24E-AtEA
Options granted to employees:
BYEEZBARE:
-on 16 January 2012 5,560,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZB-ZF-A+XA I WAV —Z-=F¥-R+REE 0.60/8 7
—2-=5-A+1H “T—tF-ATHA
Total share options outstanding 57,808,000
HATREREEY
Number of
shares issuable
under options  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2015 granted  period period price
REHZ MR ) )
ZZ-Rf¥+ZA=t+-H TRTRABE BREH fTiEs fiE®
Options granted to employees:
BYEEZBARE:
-on 11 February 2010 8,768,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RIE-TE-A+-H “E-ZF-f+-HZ ZZ-ZE)\f+-AZ 11887
“Z-ZE\RTH “E-EE-A+-A
Options granted to consultants:
BT R BBE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF-A+-H “E-ZE AT —Z2-ZF)\f+—-HZ 1188
Bt N *EAH+H BE B Y P
Qptions granted to a director.
BI—1E5zBRE:
-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
“RIE-"F-A1RH “E-F-RtRHE “Z-=F-R+REE 0.60E 7
“Z2-=%-A1IH —E—+F-f+EA
Options granted to employees:
BYEEZBARE:
-on 16 January 2012 6,120,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RIE-ZF-A1RA ZE-Z5-ATRAEZE ZZ-ZE-ftRAZ 0607
—Z2-=5-A+hAH “E-t§-ATHA
Total share options outstanding 58,788,000

HATHEERELH

TELEBEERRLE ZE-RFFR
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREZERCEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2016
had exercise price ranging from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18
(2015: from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.7 years (2015:
3.7 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2016, 748,000 of 50,248,000 options (2015:
1,168,000 of 50,668,000 options) were exercisable
in the same year of the date of grant with 50% each
of the options granted exercisable at six months and
at the end of the year from the date of grant and
49,500,000 of 50,248,000 options (2015: 49,500,000
of 50,668,000 options) are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the options
granted exercisable at six months, and first calendar
date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2016, all of the 7,560,000 (2015: 8,120,000)
unexpired and unexercised share options granted on
16 January 2012 were exercisable.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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#Eh2748,0000 (—ZE— 1
% :50,688,00010 B EF 2
1,168,000 ) A A HE B E 2
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ARRFRAYZTITFENO% LD
P BE RS B » 50,248,00019 B %
#th 749,500,000 (Z & —*H
% 150,688,000 B EF 2
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIRERERNEERZX

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions
()  Granted to director and employees
The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.

% (#&)

BRREZ D FERERRK

() RFEERES

ZER [ AR R R T JE 1S 2 AR
B2 A VFE2EERBREZR
FERE - EERBRE AR AT
Ex—BARREERAGE-
BREZANFHAARAZ—
HE A28

2012
—E——F
Fair value of share options Rt = A BERE 2 AT E HK$0.04
at measurement date 0.04% 7T
Share price =8 HK$0.2478 7T
0.048 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.60
0.60/ 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted 78 Hiji g ( LA — 7B =X HA%E
average volatility used in the modelling EEENANEAL
under Binomial Option Pricing Model) hnie R E) 50.23%
Option life (expressed as weighted average BEGHEAEHE (A — B Hisg
life used in the modelling under the EEENANTAL 5 years
Binomial Option Pricing Model) hntE 9 ER) 54
Expected dividends TEHAAR B -
Risk-free interest rate 1 B ) 2=
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) (RBINEE ©FIE) 0.85%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

B R IR T AR VR SE R R (AR
Pt 2 I I R ARt B ) 5t
B BREASENNEERE
REFEHR B ZEFHFE -
ERREIREBERSERE-
FIERATEBERRZESHTEHA
FELAELEEATE-
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)
(ii)  Granted to consultants
The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by the
consultants, taking into account the uniqueness
of the services provided by the consultants, the
historical monthly payments to similar services
provided by the consultants and the service
period, along with other out of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2016, 41,900,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme are
granted by the Company to the consultants
of the Group which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of
the Company with an exercise price of HK$1.18
per share during the exercisable period from 11
August 2010 to 11 February 2020.

40. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 25 March 2016, the Group obtained control of BLL
through the acquisition of 100% voting equity interest
in BLL, a company engaged in provision of elderly care
service, for a consideration of NTD92,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB18,505,000). The primary reason for
the business combination is to enable the Group to develop
the business for the golden-ager and further penetrate
the elderly care business market which leads to a vertical
expansion of the Group’s existing business.

Included in the loss for the year is RMB730,000 (before
impairment of goodwill of RMB15,129,000) attributable to
the additional business generated by BLL. Revenue for the
year includes RMB905,000 in respect of BLL.
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. IR EKRNEBERZR

 (#8)
(k) BEREZ D PERER (M)

(i) TR
Sigsdaeti 1 /NS S I=DELES
RS EREGE UKS
ZHRRBLMENAETEX
NzHEXEBRZRAFEE
B T5#& 2 & EafE PR AR TS
Z BRI BRI
AR 2 JE 2.8 A A R N IR 75
HIR AR E A BFRFAS - &
IrIRIR B A B R R 2 AR
B2 ARKRBELRESH-

H=z_ZT—-—X"F+=-A
=t+—HB ARREHEAE
[# 2 8 [ 2 1 41,900,00017
BT EIB T 2 BB -
ZEBEREETHEEEA
EF =T —ZTF)\A
+—BREE-_T-_TF -
B+—HIE1TE AR - %17
BEGRIEBTRES L
41,900,0008% A 1A &) P& A AR
FREE. 1B T2 EiE% -

40. ¥ S 6t

R-E—RE=ZA-+HB KEE
¥ & 192,000,0007T (HEERH AR
18,505,0007T) 2 R E @B R IER T E
MR100% 2 15 S HE IR 2N #E 2 BRAS TS 22 4R
(BEEZRBE 2 AR)) ZIEHHE - #1T
EREKAHNETEEAEEAEEH
BIRERER AR — T AEEE
Bm% S|EASEEERRERE X
f% °

FAFREIEBARET30,0007T (K
Bk 7 2R E A R #515,129,0007T) -
THER AR T EMNZ BINETS c TEMR
AEFE U A A R#905,0007T °
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40. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Had the business combination been effected at 1 January
2016, the revenue of the Group from continuing operations
and loss for the year would have been RMB57,342,000
and RMB34,661,000 respectively. The directors consider
these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition:

40.

RIEaHE ()

WEKAEHNR _Z—RE—A—B4&
B AREBRAFERELEEBR 2K
m NS T o Rl A ARS7,342,0007T
& AR #34,661,000C & ER A %
L HEE I BFTEEHERIRF(LEE
STERA LS - I A V5 A R R Tk HARE
b2 EHELE-

RIEE B M T E E R E R A
[CRUNNE

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
T Ut A T 5
ZAFHE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment M WE NEE 1,987
Trade and other receivables B 5 & b e W FRIE 289
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEDY 24
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b AT 5RIE (519)
Tax payable TR IR (7)
Total identifiable net assets WA ERHANEEFERS
at fair value 1,774
Goodwill on acquisition (note 19) W g B A 2 2 (T 3E19) 16,731
Consideration, satisfied by cash MR 2 RE 18,505
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary: WEE—FHMB AR 2 RS R H F5E
Consideration KRB 18,505
Deposit paid for acquisition in prior year RBAEFERRBEE ke (15,920)
Effect of foreign exchange rates B ReINERE R ED) 2 &
changes on deposit paid (171)
Consideration paid in cash ENBEeRE 2,414
Less: Cash and cash equivalent BB RERS R
balances acquired REZEEWEH (24)
2,390

Note:

Of the total consideration RMB15,920,000 was paid in the year
ended 31 December 2015 as deposit for the acquisition which was
used to settle part of the consideration of the acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to NTD180,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB36,000) have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year, within the
administrative expenses line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

HiET

REBE-T—AE+-_A=1+—HIFEE
RUiERS BN 2 BREAR15,920,000
T EREXNKEZ O RE-

& %180,000 (HHERH AR
36,0007T) 2 WEEMEEK A D B EBER
BEhG  TRAFEGABRERITR
MY RERAEFE 2B
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 40. XA B (H8)
The goodwill of RMB 16,731,000 arising from the acquisition U B P EE A AR 516,731,000 A B 2
is attributable to synergy of potential customer base DEEREE HAREE KT EMRR S
expected from combining the operations of the Group EORE—FTHBEREERKETIS 2
and BLL which help further promote the Group’s funeral BERTE M EERE P A G RIRUE -
services in Taiwan market. None of the goodwill recognised TEHRID M5 B RER A B B A R AT S B »
is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
The receivables acquired (which principally comprised RIERGHPWEFIERIE (FE0E
trade receivables) in this transaction with a fair value of 2 S REWEIE) A E A ARE289,000
RMB289,000 had gross contractual amount of RMB289,000 TL BEHE TR AREE289,0007T © A
The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash W iR B AT TR BT Pl R & #U3R 20
flows not expected to be collected is RMB nil. EELCEERERARKES Lo
41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
41. MR E
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR®TRT ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARIMNIRE 96,028 102,656
Intangible assets mAE 2 2
96,030 102,658
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Other receivables H A fE U BR SR 53,558 58,976
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFED 962 5,594
54,520 64,570
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREAR
Other payables o T BR 3K 25,071 | | 19,316
25,071 (19,316)
NET ASSETS BEE 125,479 147,912
EQUITY S
Share capital % 69,218 69,218
Reserves it 30 56,261 78,694
TOTAL EQUITY e ts AR 125,479 147,912
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F5 = MY 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. &t & (& &t
ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies

i)

i)

Consolidation of an entity in which the
Group does not hold any equity interests
The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under which
HLV Duc Hoa was established and controlled by
the Group, the Group receives substantially all
of the variable returns related to involvement in
HLV Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and
has the ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities
that most significantly affect those returns. The
directors of the Company considered that the
Group has maintained de facto control in HLV
Duc Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans

The Group enters into contracts with its
customers in Vietnam for sales of burial plots
under which customers are allowed to settle the
contract amount by interest-free instalments.

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of
burial plots when risks and rewards of ownership
of burial plots transferred, i.e. the contract is
signed by the customers, the burial plots are
delivered, and collectability of the contract
sum is reasonably assured. Before a significant
amount of the contract sum has been collected
and the burial plots are delivered, the Group
does not recognise it as revenue. At this stage,
the Group records all payments received as
“receipts in advance”. When significant amount
of the contract sum has been collected and the
burial plots are delivered, the Group records the
full contract sum as revenue and any unsettled
contract sum is recognised as receivables.

() ERAAEESHBERZERS

Egal
i)

i)

i
BRI EE L EFEF TR
BHEE

AEEBTEFEEEBHLY
Duc HoazZ 1L 1{a] FT & #& #&
o R IRIBAREEE A
AT I #EHIHLY Duc Hoa”
ZAER G AEEUWER
#e3r 2 E RN 2 B HLY Duc
Hoa% 7% 2 Z )Rk M F &
B UARARNETEHZE
EIFRERAFE ZHLV Duc
HoaZ%( 75 - A AR EZEER A
ANEBHHL Duc Hoa#k i
BRI H mANEEEER
Ey R AEHB AR -

BRI B 27 FT a1 285
EZi o Wit

IR B P R
ERIAK REGH &
FrRIAS® 8.0 B s = 4
HAaRTHE-

RETEAHE 2 Rk & B3
B% (EFPEREAR
BEE RN RAAEREE
REEZEARTR)E
AEET SRR KA EHH
EzWE RN B A REHE
ZARBY BRI EM 2
Al NEE A SRR -
HEHEE AEEEKME
W B ) SRR R ER A [FRUGR
Hl-HKBIEREE 2K
MoBRMELD XM K
SEEKE RSB HGIER
Rl MAABRGEESR
SRS ER D EUGRIA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. € FIE R{Est (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group'’s accounting policies (Continued)

i)

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans (Continued)

The directors exercise significant judgement in
evaluation whether revenue recognition criteria
are met. In their evaluation, the possibility of
terminating such transactions due to non-
payment by customers, are taken into account
after considering the local industry practice. The
directors concluded that when 20% of the total
contract sums in relation to sales of burial plots
is received and the burial plots were delivered,
the collectability of the remaining contract sum
is reasonably assured, sales is recognised to
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
amounts of revenue recognised from the sale of
burial plots amounted to RMB425,000 (2015:
RMB736,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the receipts in
advance in relation to sale of burial plots before
sales are recognised as revenue amounted to
RMB2,128,000 (2015: RMB1,709,000).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2016

() ERAEEHSHBERZERS
sFHE (&)

i)

TR B B0 RS 75t B3
EEi o Wik (&)

BEERAEXRHE ARG
B A KA ERIEE LR
FZRHET BEREME
AERIR  FHERETRRE
ZERZGRATP RN
BIEWA R -EERR
HAREMHEZCKER
ERRESTEN20% K EH
B A & IEHI R
Etp T EREE ZFHE
TRA] R B2 A RERR

REE-_ZT—XF+_-A
—t+t—HILEFE ELXB2
HIHE 2 ERERREABAR
#425,0000C (ZZ—HF
ANE#736,0007T) ©

NRZE—RNF+-_A=+—
H BEmEEMNEE
AWz EAEARE
2,128,000 (= —H4F:
AE#1,709,0007T) °



(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B F5 = MY 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. €y R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

(b) fEFHTHAMEREZEEZRR
AT RERRKETERRRK
A Ko i ¥ B K8 R B Rl ]
EEHTEMBFRECEELR
B2 BREEAFEREAE 25
TEABARAI 2 2 E Al 3 2R ©

(i)

HRHEEER B E

REBRN B |E HRE A
BB EERBFEEM
B BN SR - fin JE B 75 B B
EEA NI @R - A
EREEETHENS B
EXReELEMREE
BEaErTREEE (AR
FEBHERABEEHE
BEFRzuEE)E BIHR
B o N FER L SR ATY
BRUEEARFR 5T
RRERORNZHEERS
FRIESHRE HABRET
ERhEEE ZIBEMAG
BB EREER B8
BUAGTEEXREES
B2 BRARKRE R A
BEAEMMRREAGHEZ
ERERZBRE-
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B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZFT—XF+-A=+—HIFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. € FIE R{Est (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FHFTHBEZZEERE
(Continued) (£8)

(ii)  FEWRFKIE S & B

(i) Estimated impairment of receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’'s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition, where applicable). Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected
or being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss/further impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of loans
and receivables included in trade and other
receivables are RMB4,547,000, (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB291,000 (2015:
carrying amount of RMB2,273,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB1,009,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. €y R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

If circumstances indicate that the investments in
subsidiaries may not be recoverable, investments
in subsidiaries may be considered impaired,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36. Impairment of
Assets. The carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries is reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amount
has declined below the carrying amount.
The asset is tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recorded carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for investments in subsidiaries are not
readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the
investments in subsidiaries are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgment relating to level of sales volume,
tariffs and amount of operating costs of the
subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount. Including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sale volume, tariffs and amount of
operating costs of the subsidiaries.

(b) fEFHTHAMEREZEEZRR

(iii) HHIE L ARE 2B

fidf B3R 1B R BRI B A 7
BR A A BE AN E - AR
HEARMRERAIRE /D
BB WIRRE B G ER
S5365% & E R BRI E
BE -NMERARNKREDN
REES T RN UG
ARESEAEGREENE
REHE -BESREEFTH
REMXEBBERCERE
18 7 BE 8 )A Uk (Bl I H#E 77 0RL
BB - il 2ORE 1 3R - AR
EE/FHREANREEE- A
WE e 8RR RN FER LS K
AEFREENEREE - F
NS IC SN PNCIED
BT E - PTIARELE
A EE - RETERE
B RMEBARNKRER
HEANRESRESGHRE
HRE EPERELERH
HE WEMHNBARKLE
PR BEEV BN H o A
BIEAMB R BISERIARE
EAIWEEE s A BN
B ERERNAENMBER
ZBRZ b RHB AR Z
HE BANNMEERATRE
SEVE
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(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Net realisable value of inventories and

development and formation costs of burial
plots

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and
estimated cost to make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer preferences and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable value
based on assessment of the realisability of the
development and formation costs of graves
which takes into account costs to completion
based on management’s experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to
completion or a decrease in net sales value,
the net realisable value will decrease which
may result in writing down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying
value of development and formation costs of
graves is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 s MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. € FIE R{Est (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) fEFHTHABERZEEZRR

(%8

(iv)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F5 = MY 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T —RET-_A=+T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. €y R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC, Vietnam
and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

(b) fEFHTHAMEREZEEZRR

(%&)

(v)

(vi)

WER#H
EEETMEHNEENMGR
AERFEROREFETE
SRNEHEAS -

EAEE WEE-9IS =P S Y E|
MRV EEN B AR FH
BB AR B - WK E B IR AT
R BI85 - s B (R AV fh 5T
HIREARLE - BRI M
MITERBEHAXSFER

B o
=

FFia8t
ARAMHERTBHNE
B HER ARG
B o BORTE TG B BB
JEL B A K - BB
B2 - L S BT
REFETREEENR
5 MRS EENRLHG
HREBUARNSET
B AR EREYEEL X
SR 01 5 A e B B4R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 s MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. € FIE R{Est (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FHFTHBEZZEERE
(Continued) (£8)

(vii) TB1ERIER A Z ¥

(vii) Provision on funeral services deeds

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral
services deeds by adding a margin to the
estimated cost of delivering funeral services in
future, after taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the
Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds
from sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance for
funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and
determine the need of making a provision in the
consolidated financial statements.
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42. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 42. €y R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) EEFTTHBAEZZEERR
(Continued) (#8)
(viii) Fair value measurements and valuation Wiii) X FEFERZEZES

processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating the
fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available
and appropriate valuation technigue. Where
market-observable data are not available, the
Group may adopt unobservable inputs based
on their best estimate. Management may also
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. Management work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Group uses established the
appropriate valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain
assets. Note 14,16 and 32(g) provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.
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R BEUNRFBEFE A
NEEEERTEHEENRTF
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ =T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 43. REE_—_ZT—XE+=

NEW STANDARDS AND = H =y
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET FENZIERT -
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 Z &
DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the BHERENBRETE 2R BB
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new MAgRB/BHREBE_E— X F1+=A°
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 =+ —HILEFEHRRERBLRAILE
December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these I HmERANENASEI AR ER] - &
financial statements. These include the following which may REIETYSIE N A AN S B A

be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' BERAUBRE BEBEIA
EREIH:
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERUBRE EPEHYERBBETR
Customers and the related ERIE15%
Amendments’
HKFRS 16 Leases* BERBRE iy
ERIE 165
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and ERRBRE URNENR S22 B R E
Measurement of ERIE25
Share-based Payment BATAR
Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of ERAUBRELN —EREEHABE NN
and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor Z10%RAER BELEMEAEHER
and its Associate or Joint SitRBIFNE  ERE°
Venture? EHES
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative? BEGTEL S EEE
ETHBIAR
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred BEGTEL PARERBERR
Tax Assets for Unrealised ENREITR EEREARE
Losses?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to EREMBREEL HEMBREER
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle® EHES “E-MEZEZT-RF
R FE S
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! RZT—N\F—-—A—HRZERIAD
2018 B \
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZTZ—tF—A—HBx2EHARN
2017 FREHMES- \
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 3 REFAE 2 Ak 2 BRI FE
be determined ERfR ARk i
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 R-T—NF—-—A—HR2ERIAD
2019 & R \
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZZT—+F—-—A—Hxk = \F
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate —A—H (WER) k2 &FRrnEE
B &%
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REE EV & FEET LT ERR
what the impact of these amendments and new standards BRERBMEERTE AR AEE
is expected to be in the period of initial application. As MR TERAEE  BIEAP AT RE B IR A A 2
the Group has not completed its assessment, further 2 AREBLRERERERHHRH
impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken M2 E 3R E R R AR 7 =
into consideration when determining whether to adopt (AT ER AT TIRG ) EEZEE
any of these new requirements before their effective date ZERE -

and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.
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